### SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

## FORM 8-K

Current report filing

Filing Date: **2000-11-08** | Period of Report: **2000-11-01** SEC Accession No. 0000950133-00-004343

(HTML Version on secdatabase.com)

### **FILER**

### **BLC FINANCIAL SERVICES INC**

CIK:912737| IRS No.: 751430406 | State of Incorp.:DE | Fiscal Year End: 0630

Type: 8-K | Act: 34 | File No.: 001-14065 | Film No.: 755087

SIC: 6159 Miscellaneous business credit institution

Mailing Address 645 MADISON AVENUE 19TH FLOOR NEW YORK NY 10022 Business Address 645 MADISON AVENUE 19TH FLOOR NEW YORK NY 10022 2127515626

\_\_\_\_\_ SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549 \_\_\_\_\_ FORM 8-K CURRENT REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 Date of Report (Date of Earliest Event Reported): November 1, 2000 BLC FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. \_\_\_\_\_ (Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in its Charter) DELAWARE \_\_\_\_\_\_ (State or Other Jurisdiction of Incorporation) <TABLE> <C> <S> 001-14065 75-1430406 \_\_\_\_\_\_ \_\_\_\_\_ (Commission File Number) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.) 645 MADISON AVENUE, 19TH FLOOR 10022-1010 \_\_\_\_\_ NEW YORK, NEW YORK \_\_\_\_\_ (Zip Code) (Address of Principal Executive Offices) </TABLE> (212) 751-5626 \_\_\_\_\_

(Registrant's Telephone Number, Including Area Code)

Not Applicable

-----

(Former Name or Former Address, if Changed Since Last Report)

\_\_\_\_\_\_

2

Item 5. Other Events.

On October 31, 2000, BLC Financial Services, Inc. ("BLC"), Allied Capital Corporation ("Allied Capital") and Allied Capital B Sub Corporation, a wholly owned subsidiary of Allied Capital ("Merger Sub"), entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of October 31, 2000 (the "Merger Agreement"). The Merger Agreement provides for the merger of Merger Sub with and into BLC.

Immediately prior to the merger, a new class of common stock, Class B Common Stock, \$.01 par value, of BLC (the "Class B Common Stock") will be authorized and the common stock, \$.01 par value, of BLC (the "Common Stock" and together with the Class B Common Stock, the "BLC Stock") held by certain stockholders of BLC and Futuronics Corporation will be exchanged for an equal number of shares of the Class B Common Stock. In the merger, (a) each share of Common Stock outstanding at the effective time of the merger will be converted into 0.180 shares (the "Exchange Ratio") of common stock, \$.0001 par value, of Allied Capital (the "Allied Capital Common Stock") and (b) each share of Class B Common Stock outstanding at the effective time of the merger will be converted into one share of Common Stock. The consummation of the merger is subject to certain customary conditions, including the approval of the U.S. Small Business Administration, the expiration or termination of any applicable waiting period under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976 and the approval of the holders of BLC Stock.

Pursuant to a Voting and Support Agreement, dated as of October 31, 2000, among Allied Capital and certain stockholders of BLC, such stockholders have agreed to vote their shares of Common Stock in favor of the merger.

The information set forth in the press release, the Merger Agreement, the Voting Agreement and attached hereto as exhibits is incorporated herein by reference in its entirety.

Item 7. Financial Statements and Exhibits.

- (c) Exhibits.
- 99.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of October 31, 2000 by and among Allied Capital Corporation, Allied Capital B Sub Corporation and BLC Financial Services, Inc. (without schedules).
- 99.2 Voting and Support Agreement dated October 31, 2000 by and among Allied Capital Corporation, Robert Tannenhauser, Carol Tannenhauser, David Tannenhauser, Emily Tannenhauser, Peter Blanck, Richard Blanck, Jennifer Goldstein, Diane

2

3

Rosenfeld, R. Matthew McGee and Futuronics Corporation (without schedules).

99.3 Press Release dated November 1, 2000 issued by Allied Capital announcing the execution of the Merger Agreement.

4

#### SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

BLC Financial Services, Inc.

By: /s/ Jennifer Goldstein

Jennifer Goldstein, Chief Financial Officer

November 7, 2000

4

5

## EXHIBIT INDEX Item No.

- Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of October 31, 2000 by and among Allied Capital Corporation, Allied Capital B Sub Corporation, and BLC Financial Services, Inc. (without schedules).
- 99.2 Voting and Support Agreement dated October 31, 2000 by and among Allied Capital Corporation, Robert Tannenhauser, Carol Tannenhauser, David Tannenhauser, Emily Tannenhauser, Peter Blanck, Richard Blanck, Jennifer Goldstein, Diane Rosenfeld, R. Matthew McGee and Futuronics Corporation.
- Press Release dated November 1, 2000 issued by Allied Capital announcing the execution of the Merger Agreement.

5

### EXHIBIT 99.1

AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER
DATED AS OF OCTOBER 31, 2000
BY AND AMONG
ALLIED CAPITAL CORPORATION,
ALLIED CAPITAL B SUB CORPORATION,
AND
BLC FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.

2

<TABLE>

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

<caption></caption>			
			PAGE
<s></s>		<c></c>	<c></c>
ARTICLE I		THE MERGER; EFFECT OF MERGER	A-1
Section	1.1	The Merger	A-1
Section	1.2	Effective Time of the Merger	A-1
Section	1.3	Effects of Merger	A-1
ARTICLE II		THE SURVIVING CORPORATION	A-2
Section	2.1	Certificate of Incorporation	A-2
Section	2.2	By-Laws	A-2
Section	2.3	Officers and Directors	A-2
ARTICLE III		CONVERSION OF SHARES	A-2
Section	3.1	Conversion of Shares	A-2
Section	3.2	Surrender	A-3
Section	3.3	Dividends; Transfer Taxes	A-4
Section	3.4	Fractional Securities	A-4
Section	3.5	Closing of Company Transfer Books	A-4
Section	3.6	Stockholder Approval	A-4
Section	3.7	Tax Treatment	A-5
Section	3.8	Exercise and Conversion of Vested Stock Options and	
		Warrants	A-5
Section	3.9	Redemption or Conversion of Convertible Debentures	A-5
ARTICLE IV		REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE COMPANY	A-5
Section	4.1	Execution and Delivery	A-5
Section	4.2	Consents and Approvals	A-6
Section	4.3	No Breach	A-6
Section	4.4	Organization, Standing and Authority	A-7
Section	4.5	Capitalization of the Company	A-7
Section	4.6	Options and Other Stock Rights	A-7
Section	4.7	Subsidiaries	A-8
Section	4.8	Corporate Records	A-8
Section	4.9	Information in Disclosure Documents	A-9
Section	4.10	SEC Documents; Financial Statements	A-9
Section	4.11	Liabilities	A-10
Section	4.12	No Company Material Adverse Effect	A-10
Section	4.13	Compliance with Laws	A-10
Section	4.14	Permits	A-10

Section Section	4.16	Actions and Proceedings	A-10 A-11
Section	1 4.17	Loan Portfolios	A-13
Section		Real Property	A-14
Section		Intellectual Property	A-15
Section		Receivables	A-16
Section		Banking	A-16
Section		Liens	A-16
Section		Employee Benefit Plans	A-16
Section		Employee Relations	A-18
Section		Insurance	A-18
Section		Officers, Directors, Employees, Consultants	A-18
Section		Transactions with Directors, Officers and Affiliates	A-19
Section		Operations of the Company	A-19
Section		Brokerage	A-20
Section	n 4.30	Taxes	A-21

					i	
3						
			PAGE			
Section	a 4.31	Environmental Laws	A-22			
Section	4.32	Company Action	A-23			
Section	1 4.33	Opinion of Financial Advisor	A-23			
Section	4.34	Cancellation of Certain Agreements	A-23			
Section	4.35	Status of Certain Employment Agreements	A-23			
ARTICLE V		REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF PARENT AND SUB	A-24			
Section	1 5**.**1	Execution and Delivery	A-24			
Section	1 5.2	Consents and Approvals	A-24			
Section		No Breach	A-25			
Section	5.4	SEC Documents; Financial Statements	A-25			
Section	1 5.5	Shares of Parent Common Stock	A-26			
Section		Organization, Standing and Authority of Parent and Sub	A-26			
Section	1 5.7	Capitalization	A-26			
Section		Brokerage	A-26			
Section		Information in Disclosure Documents	A-26			
Section		No Material Adverse Change	A-27			
Section		Sub Action	A-27			
Section		Options and Other Stock Rights	A-27			
Section		Tax Information in Disclosure Documents	A-27			
Section		Liabilities	A-28			
Section		Compliance with Laws	A-28			
Section		Permits	A-28			
Section		Actions and Proceedings	A-28			
Section		Loan Portfolio	A-28			
Section	1 5.19	No Prior Activities	A-29			
ARTICLE VI		COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS	A-29			
Section		Conduct of Business	A-29			
Section		Litigation Involving the Company	A-30			
Section	1 6.3	Continued Effectiveness of Representations and Warranties of	**3** 00			
		the Parties	A-30			

Section	0.4	Confidentiality
Section	6 5	Indemnification of Company Officers and Directors
Section		Registration Statement/Proxy Statement
Section		Compliance with the Securities Act
Section		Nasdaq Listing
Section		Acquisition Proposals
Section		Parent and Sub Approvals
Section		Company Approvals
Section		Nomination to Surviving Company Board
Section		Expenses
Section		Further Assurances
Section		Hart-Scott-Rodino
Section		SBA Approval
Section		Updating Schedules
Section		Employee Benefits
Section		Company Recapitalization
ARTICLE VII	0.19	CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO EACH PARTY'S OBLIGATION TO EFFECT
0	7 1	THE MERGER
Section Section		Company Stockholder Approval
		Listing of Shares  Hart-Scott-Rodino
Section		

 7.3 | Hart-Scott-Rodino ||  |  | ii |
4		
10)		
	7 4	
Section		Effectiveness of Registration Statement
Section		SBA Approval
Section		Litigation
Section	1 • 1	Futuronics Merger; Company Recapitalization
ARTICLE VIII		CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO THE OBLIGATION OF PARENT AND SUB TO
0-2	0 1	EFFECT THE MERGER
Section Section		Representations and Covenants
		Absence of Material Adverse Change
Section		Receipt of Agreements
Section	8.4	Exercise and Conversion of Vested Stock Options and
~	0 5	Warrants
Section		Unvested Options
Section		Convertible Debentures
Section		Tax Opinion
Section	8.8	Closing Conditions
ARTICLE IX		CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO THE OBLIGATION OF THE COMPANY TO EFFECT THE MERGER
Section	9.1	Representations and Covenants
Section	9.2	Absence of Material Adverse Change
Section	9.3	Tax Opinion
Section	9.4	Closing Conditions
ARTICLE X		CLOSING
ARTICLE XI		NON-SURVIVAL OF REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES COVENANTS AND

Section	11.1	Non-Survival of Representations, Warranties, Covenants and	
		Agreements A	A - 40
ARTICLE XII		TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT	A-40
Section	12.1	Termination A	A-40
Section	12.2	Effect of Termination A	A-41
ARTICLE XIII		DEFINITIONS A	A-41
Section	13.1	Definitions A	A-41
ARTICLE XIV		MISCELLANEOUS A	A-47
Section	14.1	Publicity A	A-47
Section	14.2	Parent Guaranty A	A-47
Section	14.3	Notices A	A-47
Section	14.4	Entire Agreement	A-48
Section	14.5	Waivers and Amendments; Non Contractual Remedies;	
		Preservation of Remedies; Liability A	A-48
Section	14.6	GOVERNING LAW	A-48
Section	14.7	Binding Effect; No Assignment A	A-48
Section	14.8	Third Party Beneficiaries	A-49
Section	14.9	Counterparts	A-49
Section	14.10	Exhibits and Schedules	A-49
Section	14.11	Headings A	A-49
Section	14.12	Submission to Jurisdiction; Venue A	A-49
Section	14.13	Specific Performance	A-49
Section	14.14	Severability A	A-50

  |  |  |iii

5

#### AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER

THIS AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER (this "Agreement"), dated as of October 31, 2000, is made by and among Allied Capital Corporation, a Maryland corporation ("Parent"), Allied Capital B Sub Corporation, a Delaware corporation and a wholly owned subsidiary of Parent ("Sub"), and BLC Financial Services, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Company"). Certain terms used in this Agreement are defined in Article XIII.

#### WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Parent and Sub desire to effect a business combination by means of the merger of Sub with and into the Company;

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of Parent and Sub and the stockholder of Sub and the Board of Directors of the Company have approved the merger of Sub with and into the Company (the "Merger"), upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth herein;

WHEREAS, simultaneously with the execution of this Agreement, the Named Persons and Parent are entering into a Voting Agreement in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A (the "Voting Agreement"); and

WHEREAS, for federal income tax purposes, it is intended that the Merger qualify as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code");

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the representations,

warranties, covenants and agreements herein contained, the parties hereto agree as follows:

## ARTICLE I THE MERGER; EFFECT OF MERGER

SECTION 1.1 THE MERGER. Upon the terms and subject to the conditions of this Agreement and in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Delaware General Corporation Law, as amended, and any rules and regulations thereunder (the "Delaware Corporation Law"), Sub shall be merged with and into the Company and the separate existence of Sub shall thereupon cease. The name of the Company, as the surviving corporation in the Merger (the "Surviving Corporation"), shall by virtue of the Merger be changed to such name as Parent, in its sole discretion, may choose.

SECTION 1.2 EFFECTIVE TIME OF THE MERGER. The Merger shall become effective at such time as a properly executed certificate of merger or other appropriate document is duly filed with the Secretary of State of Delaware, which filing shall be made as soon as practicable following fulfillment or waiver of the conditions set forth in Articles VII, VIII and IX hereof or such later time as is specified in such filing (the "Effective Time").

SECTION 1.3 EFFECTS OF MERGER. The Merger shall have the effects set forth in Section 259 of the Delaware Corporation Law.

A-1

6

## ARTICLE II THE SURVIVING CORPORATION

SECTION 2.1 CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION. The certificate of incorporation of the Company as in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be the Certificate of Incorporation of the Surviving Corporation, and thereafter may be amended in accordance with its terms and as provided by the Delaware Corporation Law.

SECTION 2.2 BY-LAWS. The by-laws of the Company as in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be the by-laws of the Surviving Corporation, and thereafter may be amended in accordance with their terms and as provided by the Delaware Corporation Law.

SECTION 2.3 OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS. The officers of the Company immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be the officers of the Surviving Corporation after the Effective Time and the directors of Sub immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be the directors of the Surviving Corporation after the Effective Time, in each case until their respective successors are duly elected and qualified.

## ARTICLE III CONVERSION OF SHARES

SECTION 3.1 CONVERSION OF SHARES. (a) At the Effective Time, by virtue of the Merger and without any action on the part of any Company stockholder:

(1) Conversion of Company Common Stock. Each share of Company Common Stock

outstanding after giving effect to the Company Recapitalization shall be converted into 0.180 fully paid and nonassessable shares of Parent Common Stock (the "Exchange Ratio").

- (2) Each share of Company Class B Stock outstanding upon consummation of the Company Recapitalization shall be converted into one validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable share of Company Common Stock.
- (3) Cancellation of Company Treasury Stock. All shares of Company Common Stock which are held in the treasury of the Company upon consummation of the Company Recapitalization shall be canceled and shall cease to exist.
- (b) If at any time prior to the Effective Time, the outstanding shares of Parent Common Stock shall be changed into a different number of shares or a different class by reason of any reclassification, recapitalization, split-up, combination, exchange of shares or readjustment, or if a stock dividend thereon shall be declared with a record date within such period, the Exchange Ratio shall be correspondingly adjusted. The issuance of shares of Parent Common Stock pursuant to Parent's dividend reinvestment plan consistent with past practices shall not constitute a stock dividend for this purpose.
- (c) Each issued and outstanding share of capital stock of Sub shall be converted into that number of validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable shares of Company Common Stock as shall result in (i) the sum of the aggregate number of shares of Company Common Stock issued to Parent upon such conversion plus (ii) the aggregate number of shares of Company Common Stock issued to Futuronics pursuant to Section 3.1(a)(2) being equal to 94.9 percent of the total number of shares of Company Common Stock issued pursuant to Section 3.1(a)(2) and this Section 3.1(c).

A-2

7

- (d) All Company Common Stock outstanding immediately after the Company Recapitalization and immediately prior to the Effective Time (the "Canceled Company Stock") shall cease to exist, and each certificate previously representing such Canceled Company Stock shall (subject to Section 3.3) thereafter represent for all corporate purposes the shares of Parent Common Stock into which such shares of Canceled Company Stock have been converted pursuant to the Merger. Certificates previously representing such shares of Canceled Company Stock shall be exchanged for a confirmation of ownership of Parent Common Stock issued in consideration therefor upon surrender in accordance with Section 3.2, without interest.
- (e) The Parent shall issue shares of Parent Common Stock to be issued in the Merger in uncertificated form, and in accordance with Section 3.2 shall send to each person entitled to receive such shares the information required under Section 2-210(c) of the Maryland General Corporation Law with respect to such shares (a "Confirmation").
- SECTION 3.2 SURRENDER. (a) Prior to the Closing, Parent shall select a person or persons to act as exchange agent for the Merger (the "Exchange Agent"), which person or persons shall be reasonably acceptable to the Company, for the purpose of exchanging certificates representing Canceled Company Stock

for Confirmations as to the Share Consideration. On the Closing Date, the Surviving Corporation shall deliver to the Exchange Agent, in trust for the benefit of the holders of Canceled Company Stock immediately prior to the Effective Time (the "Converting Stockholders"), the Share Consideration and related information. As soon as reasonably practicable after the Effective Time but in no event more than five Business Days after the Effective Time, the Surviving Corporation shall cause the Exchange Agent to send a notice and a letter of transmittal to each Converting Stockholder advising such holder of the effectiveness of the Merger and the procedure for surrendering to the Exchange Agent for cancellation such holder's certificates representing Canceled Company Stock ("Certificates"), in exchange for the Share Consideration. Each Converting Stockholder will be entitled to receive, upon surrender to the Exchange Agent for cancellation of one or more Certificates, a Confirmation representing the number of shares of Parent Common Stock into which such shares are converted in the Merger. Parent Common Stock into which Canceled Company Stock shall be converted in the Merger shall be deemed to have been issued at the Effective Time (the "Share Consideration"). In the event that any Converting Stockholder's Certificates have been lost, stolen or destroyed, such Converting Stockholder will be entitled to receive the Share Consideration only after providing an affidavit of loss and indemnity bond, in form satisfactory to the Exchange Agent.

- (b) Converting Stockholders shall be entitled, at and after the Effective Time, to vote the number of shares of Parent Common Stock into which their shares of Canceled Company Stock shall have been converted so long as they remain record holders of such shares of Parent Common Stock, regardless of whether the Certificates formerly representing the Canceled Company Stock shall have been surrendered in accordance with this Section 3.2 or a Confirmation with respect to such shares of Parent Common Stock shall have been issued.
- (c) Any Converting Stockholder who has not exchanged his Certificates for Parent Common Stock in accordance with subsection (a) within six months after the Effective Time shall have no further claim upon the Exchange Agent, and shall thereafter look only to Parent and the Surviving Corporation for payment in respect of his shares of Canceled Company Stock. Until so surrendered, Certificates shall represent solely the right to receive the Share Consideration. If any Certificates entitled to payment pursuant to Section 3.1 shall not have been surrendered for such payment prior to such date on which any

A-3

8

payment in respect thereof would otherwise escheat to or become the property of any Governmental Entity, the shares of Canceled Company Stock represented thereby shall, to the extent permitted by applicable law, be deemed to be canceled and no money or other property will be due to the holder thereof.

SECTION 3.3 DIVIDENDS; TRANSFER TAXES. No dividends that are declared or made with respect to Parent Common Stock will be paid to persons entitled to receive Confirmations representing Parent Common Stock pursuant to this Agreement until such persons surrender their Certificates, together with a properly completed letter of transmittal. Such dividends shall instead be paid to the Exchange Agent on behalf of, and as nominee for, such person, and held by

the Exchange Agent in a non-interest bearing account. Upon such surrender, there shall be paid to the person in whose name the Confirmation representing such Parent Common Stock shall be issued dividends which shall have become payable with respect to such Parent Common Stock in respect of any record date occurring after the Effective Time. In no event shall the person entitled to receive such dividends be entitled to receive interest on such dividends. Dividends paid to the Exchange Agent pursuant to this Section 3.3 that remain unclaimed by the holders of Canceled Company Stock shall not revert or be returned to the Parent, and the Parent hereby waives any rights it may have to such assets. In the event that any portion of the Share Consideration for any shares of Parent Common Stock is to be delivered to a person other than that in which the Certificates surrendered in exchange therefor are registered, it shall be a condition of such delivery that the Certificate or Certificates so surrendered shall be properly endorsed or be otherwise in proper form for transfer (including signature guarantee) and that the person requesting such delivery shall pay to the Exchange Agent any transfer or other taxes required by reason of such delivery to a person other than that of the registered holder of the Certificate surrendered, or shall establish to the satisfaction of the Exchange Agent that such tax has been paid or is not applicable. Notwithstanding the foregoing, neither the Exchange Agent nor any party hereto shall be liable to a holder of shares of Canceled Company Stock for any shares of Parent Common Stock or dividends thereon delivered to a public official pursuant to any applicable escheat laws.

SECTION 3.4 FRACTIONAL SECURITIES. Parent shall issue fractional shares of Parent Common Stock to the extent the conversion results in a fraction of a share, in which case such fraction shall be rounded to the nearest one-thousandth of a share (rounding upward from the mid-point between thousandths of a share).

SECTION 3.5 CLOSING OF COMPANY TRANSFER BOOKS. Immediately prior to the Effective Time, the Company Common Stock transfer books shall be closed and no transfer of Canceled Company Stock shall thereafter be made.

SECTION 3.6 STOCKHOLDER APPROVAL. The Company shall take all action necessary, in accordance with applicable law and its Certificate of Incorporation and By-Laws, to convene a special meeting of the holders of Company Common Stock (the "Company Meeting") as promptly as practicable for the purpose of considering and taking action upon this Agreement and the Company Recapitalization. The Board of Directors of the Company has approved the Merger and the Company Recapitalization and adopted this Agreement and recommended that holders of Company Common Stock vote in favor of and approve the Merger and the Company Recapitalization and the adoption of this Agreement at the Company Meeting. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this Section 3.6 shall preclude or limit the Board of Directors of the Company from complying with its fiduciary duties under applicable law.

SECTION 3.7 TAX TREATMENT. The Merger is intended to constitute a reorganization under Section 368(a) of the Code, and Parent and the Company shall not report the transaction on

A-4

9

any tax return in a manner or take any action in any audit or other judicial or administrative proceeding or otherwise that is inconsistent therewith.

SECTION 3.8 EXERCISE AND CONVERSION OF VESTED STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS. The Company shall use all reasonable efforts to cause all vested Company Stock Options and all Company Warrants to be fully exercised for the purchase of Company Common Stock prior to the Effective Time, and may make full recourse loans to the holders of such Company Stock Options or otherwise arrange for the cashless exercise thereof.

SECTION 3.9 REDEMPTION OR CONVERSION OF CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES. The Company shall use all reasonable efforts to redeem all outstanding Company Convertible Debentures prior to the Effective Time in accordance with the terms thereof to the extent not converted into Company Common Stock in accordance with the terms thereof prior to such time.

# ARTICLE IV REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE COMPANY

The Company represents and warrants to Parent and Sub that, except as set forth in the disclosure schedule attached hereto (the "Company Disclosure Schedule"), which Company Disclosure Schedule shall be arranged in paragraphs corresponding to the numbered and lettered paragraphs contained in this Article IV and may be amended from time to time pursuant to the provisions hereof:

SECTION 4.1 EXECUTION AND DELIVERY. The Company has the corporate power and authority to enter into this Agreement and each other agreement, document or instrument contemplated hereby or to be executed in connection herewith to which the Company is a party (the "Company Documents") and, subject to approval of this Agreement by the holders of the Company Common Stock, to carry out its obligations hereunder and thereunder. The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the Company Documents and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby have been duly and validly authorized by the Company's Board of Directors. This Agreement constitutes the valid and binding obligation of the Company and the Company Documents, when executed and delivered, will constitute the valid and binding obligations of the Company, in each case enforceable in accordance with their respective terms, except as enforcement may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency or other similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights generally and except that the availability of equitable remedies, including specific performance, is subject to the discretion of the court before which any proceeding therefor may be brought. Except for the approval of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Company Common Stock, no other corporate proceedings on the part of the Company are necessary after the date of this Agreement to authorize this Agreement and the Company Documents and the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby.

SECTION 4.2 CONSENTS AND APPROVALS. The execution and delivery by the Company of this Agreement and the Company Documents, the performance by the Company of its obligations hereunder and thereunder, and the consummation by the Company of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, as the case may be, do not require the Company to obtain any consent, approval or action of, or make any filing or registration with, or give any notice to, any person or any Governmental Entity, other than (i) in connection, or in compliance, with the provisions of the H-S-R Act, if applicable, and the Exchange Act, which will be duly obtained or made, as the case may be, on or prior to the Closing, and will be in full force and effect on the Closing Date, (ii) in the case of the performance by the

Company of its obligations hereunder and under the Company Documents and the consummation by the Company of the transactions contemplated hereby and by the Company Documents, the approval of the holders of the Company Common Stock as specified in Section 4.1, (iii) the approval of the United States Small Business Administration (the "SBA"), (iv) the filing of the Certificate of Merger with the Secretary of State of Delaware and (v) any approvals from any party required under any of the Company's or its Subsidiaries' existing financing agreements as set forth on Section 4.2(v) of the Company Disclosure Schedule.

SECTION 4.3 NO BREACH. Except as set forth in Section 4.3 of the Company Disclosure Schedule and for filings, notices, consents and approvals as may be required by Delaware Corporation Law, the Securities Act, the Exchange Act and the 1940 Act, the execution, delivery and performance by the Company of this Agreement and the Company Documents and the consummation by the Company of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby in accordance with the terms and conditions hereof and thereof will not (i) violate any provision of the Certificate of Incorporation or By-Laws of the Company; (ii) violate, conflict with or result in the breach of any of the terms of, result in any modification of the effect of, otherwise give any other contracting party the right to terminate, or constitute (or with notice or lapse of time or both, constitute) a default under, any contract or other agreement or instrument to which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is a party or by or to which the assets or properties of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries may be bound or subject; (iii) violate any order, judgment, injunction, award or decree of any Governmental Entity against, or binding upon, or any agreement with, or condition imposed by, any Governmental Entity, binding upon the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, or upon the securities, assets or business of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries; (iv) violate any statute, law or regulation of any jurisdiction as such statute, law or regulation relates to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, or to the securities, assets or business of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries; (v) result in the creation or imposition of any lien or other encumbrance or the acceleration of any indebtedness or other obligation of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries; or (vi) result in the breach of any of the terms or conditions of, constitute a default under, or otherwise cause a violation of, any Permit of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries; except in the case of (ii) through (vi) above, for violations, conflicts, breaches, defaults, modifications, impairments, liens or other encumbrances that would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect on the funding, management, business, properties, assets, condition (financial or otherwise), liabilities or operations of the Company and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or adversely affect the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby in any material respect, but excluding therefrom any such change, effect, event, occurrence or state of facts resulting from or arising in connection with (A) changes or conditions generally affecting the industries in which the Company or its Subsidiaries operate, except to the extent the changes or conditions referred to in this Clause (A) affect the funding of the Company and its Subsidiaries or (B) this Agreement, the transactions contemplated hereby or the announcement thereof (a "Company Material Adverse Effect").

SECTION 4.4 ORGANIZATION, STANDING AND AUTHORITY. The Company is a corporation duly incorporated, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Delaware and has all requisite corporate power and

authority to own, lease and operate its assets, properties and business and to carry on its business as now being conducted or currently proposed to be conducted. The Company is duly qualified as a foreign corporation to do business, and is in good standing, in each jurisdiction where the character of its properties owned or held under lease or the nature of such activities make such qualification necessary, except where the failure to so qualify would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect. All such jurisdictions are set forth on Section 4.4 of the

A-6

11

Company Disclosure Schedule. The copies of the Certificate of Incorporation and By-Laws of the Company included as part of Section 4.4 of the Company Disclosure Schedule constitute accurate and complete copies of such organizational instruments and accurately reflect all amendments thereto through the date hereof.

SECTION 4.5 CAPITALIZATION OF THE COMPANY. The authorized capital stock of the Company consists of 35,000,000 shares of Company Common Stock. As of the date of this Agreement there were 22,061,443 shares of Company Common Stock outstanding. Except as set forth in Section 4.5 of the Company Disclosure Schedule, as of the date hereof there are no bonds, debentures, notes or other indebtedness having the right to vote on any matters on which the Company's stockholders may vote issued or outstanding. Section 4.5 of the Company Disclosure Schedule sets forth a true and complete list as of the date indicated of the holders of all (i) outstanding vested and unvested Company Stock Options, (ii) outstanding Company Convertible Debentures and (iii) outstanding Company Warrants, showing as to each such holder the number of Company Stock Options (vested or unvested), Company Convertible Debentures or Company Warrants so held, such holder's mailing address and in the case of Company Stock Options, the date of grant, vesting schedules and exercise price of all such Company Stock Options. All outstanding shares of Company Common Stock are duly authorized and are validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable and free of preemptive rights. All Company Convertible Debentures were issued in compliance with the Securities Act.

SECTION 4.6 OPTIONS AND OTHER STOCK RIGHTS. Except as set forth in Section 4.6 of the Company Disclosure Schedule, there is no (i) outstanding option, warrant, call, unsatisfied preemptive right or other agreement of any kind binding upon the Company to purchase or otherwise to receive from the Company any of the outstanding, authorized but unissued, unauthorized or treasury shares of Company Common Stock or any other security of the Company, (ii) outstanding security of any kind binding upon the Company convertible into any security of the Company, and (iii) outstanding contract or other agreement binding upon the Company or any of its Subsidiaries to purchase, redeem or otherwise acquire any outstanding shares of Company Common Stock or any other security of the Company.

SECTION 4.7 SUBSIDIARIES. (a) Section 4.7 of the Company Disclosure Schedule sets forth (i) the name of each Subsidiary of the Company; (ii) the name of each corporation, limited liability company, partnership, joint venture or other entity (other than such Subsidiaries) in which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries has, or pursuant to any agreement has the right or obligation to acquire at any time by any means, directly or indirectly, an equity interest or investment; (iii) in the case of each such corporations described in clauses (i) and (ii) above, (A) the jurisdiction of incorporation and (B) the

capitalization thereof and the percentage of each class of capital stock (including any rights, options or warrants outstanding or other agreements to acquire shares of capital stock) and issuance of outstanding debt owned by the Company or any of it Subsidiaries and by any other Person.

(b) Except as set forth in Section 4.7(b) of the Company Disclosure Schedule, each Subsidiary of the Company listed in Section 4.7(a) of the Company Disclosure Schedule has been duly organized, is validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its organization, has the corporate power and authority to own and lease its properties and to conduct its business and is duly registered, qualified and authorized to transact business and is in good standing in each jurisdiction in which the conduct of its business or the nature of its properties requires such registration, qualification or authorization, except where the failure to be so qualified would not reasonably be expected to have a Company Material Adverse Effect. All of the issued and outstanding equity or other participating interests of each Subsidiary have been duly authorized and validly

A-7

12

issued, are fully paid and nonassessable, and, to the extent owned by the Company as indicated in Section 4.7 of the Company Disclosure Schedule, are owned free and clear of any mortgage, pledge, lien, encumbrance, security interest, claim or equity, except as set forth in Section 4.7 of the Company Disclosure Schedule.

(c) As of the date hereof, excluding assets acquired as a result of loan foreclosures and receivables on assets acquired as a result of loan foreclosures and except as listed in Section 4.7 or Section 4.17 of the Company Disclosure Schedule, the Company has not made any investments in, and does not own any securities of or other interests in, any other Person.

SECTION 4.8 CORPORATE RECORDS. The Company has heretofore delivered to Parent true and complete copies of the minute books of the Company and each of its Subsidiaries for the five years prior to the date hereof through and including the date hereof, all as in effect on the date hereof. The minute books of the Company and its Subsidiaries reflect all actions taken at all meetings and consents in lieu of meetings of stockholders, and all actions taken at all meetings and consents in lieu of meetings of the Company's or each of its Subsidiaries' Board of Directors and all committees thereof.

SECTION 4.9 INFORMATION IN DISCLOSURE DOCUMENTS. None of the information with respect to the Company and its Subsidiaries to be included in (i) the joint prospectus/proxy statement of the Company and Parent (the "Proxy Statement") required to be mailed to the stockholders of the Company in connection with the Merger and (ii) the Registration Statement to be filed with the Commission by Parent on Form N-14 under the Securities Act for the purpose of registering the shares of Parent Common Stock to be issued in the Merger (the "Registration Statement") will, in the case of the Proxy Statement or any amendments or supplements thereto, at the time of the mailing of the Proxy Statement and any amendments or supplements thereto, and at the time of the Company Meeting, or, in the case of the Registration Statement, at the time it becomes effective and at the Effective Time, contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order

to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; provided, however, that this provision shall not apply to statements or omissions in the Registration Statement or Proxy Statement based upon information furnished by Parent for use therein. The Proxy Statement will comply as to form in all material respects with the provisions of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations thereunder. No representation or warranty made by the Company contained in this Agreement and no statement contained in any certificate delivered pursuant to Article VII or any exhibit to this Agreement and the Company Disclosure Schedule, as the same may be amended pursuant to the provisions hereof, contains any untrue statement of a material fact or omits or will omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements contained therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.

SECTION 4.10 SEC DOCUMENTS; FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. (a) The Company and its Subsidiaries have to the Company's Knowledge filed and will file with the SEC all forms, reports, schedules, statements, exhibits and other documents (collectively, the "Company SEC Documents") required to be filed on or before the date hereof or the Closing Date, respectively, by it under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act. The Company has furnished or made available to Parent true and correct copies of all Company SEC Documents filed by the Company and its Subsidiaries since July 1, 1998 and will promptly furnish to Parent any other Company SEC Document filed by or on behalf of the Company with the SEC from the date hereof to the Closing Date. At the time filed, the Company SEC Documents filed by the Company and its Subsidiaries since July 1, 1998 (i) did not contain any untrue statement of a

A-8

13

material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading and (ii) complied in all material respects with the applicable requirements of the Securities Act or Exchange Act, as the case may be.

(b) The audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its Subsidiaries for the three years ended June 30, 2000, together with the reports and opinions thereon of Richard A. Eisner & Company LLP (the "Company Audited Financial Statements"), which are included in the Company SEC Documents and have previously been delivered to Parent and the unaudited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its Subsidiaries for the three months ended September 30, 2000 (the "Company Interim Financial Statements"), which will be included in the Company SEC Documents and will be delivered to Parent as soon as they are filed, are collectively referred to herein as the "Company Financial Statements". The Company Financial Statements comply as to form in all material respects with applicable accounting requirements and the published rules and regulations of the SEC with respect thereto; and fairly present, in all material respects, on a consolidated basis, the financial position of the Company at, and the results of its operations for, each of the periods then ended and were prepared in conformity with GAAP applied on a consistent basis, except as otherwise disclosed therein and, subject, in the case of the Company Interim Financial Statements, to normal recurring year-end adjustments, the absence of footnote disclosures, and any other adjustments described therein.

SECTION 4.11 LIABILITIES. To the Company's Knowledge, the Company and its Subsidiaries do not have any direct or indirect liability, contingent or otherwise, that is required by GAAP to be reflected or reserved for on the financial statements of the Company (collectively, the "Liabilities"), that was not adequately reflected or reserved against on the Company Audited Financial Statements for the 12-month period ended June 30, 2000 or on the Company Interim Financial Statements for the three-month period ended September 30, 2000, other than (i) liabilities set forth in Section 4.11 of the Company Disclosure Schedule, (ii) liabilities incurred in the ordinary course of business since June 30, 2000 consistent with past practices, or (iii) liabilities permitted by this Agreement to be incurred in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

SECTION 4.12 NO COMPANY MATERIAL ADVERSE EFFECT. Except as disclosed in Section 4.12 of the Company Disclosure Schedule, since July 1, 2000, there has not been any change, event, occurrence or state of facts that has caused, or would reasonably be expected to cause, a Company Material Adverse Effect.

SECTION 4.13 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. To the Company's Knowledge, except as disclosed in Section 4.13 of the Company Disclosure Schedule, neither the Company nor its Subsidiaries are in violation in any material respect of any applicable order, judgment, injunction, award or decree, law, ordinance or regulation or any other requirement of any Governmental Entity applicable to the Company or any of its businesses. Neither the Company or its Subsidiaries received notice that any such material violation has been alleged or is being investigated. This Section 4.13 shall not apply to Taxes.

SECTION 4.14 PERMITS. To the Company's Knowledge, except as set forth in Section 4.14 of the Company Disclosure Schedule, (i) the Company and its Subsidiaries have obtained all Permits that are necessary for the ownership and conduct of their respective businesses as presently conducted or currently proposed to be conducted, other than any Permits, the absence of which would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material

A-9

14

Adverse Effect; (ii) to the Company's Knowledge, such Permits are in full force and effect and are sufficient for the ownership and conduct of such businesses as presently conducted or currently proposed to be conducted; no violations exist or have been recorded in respect of any material Permit; and (iii) no proceeding is pending or, to the Knowledge of the Company or its Subsidiaries, threatened, that would suspend, revoke or limit any material Permit.

SECTION 4.15 ACTIONS AND PROCEEDINGS. Except as disclosed in Section 4.15 of the Company Disclosure Schedule or the Company SEC Documents, there are no outstanding orders, judgments, injunctions, awards or decrees of any Governmental Entity against or involving the Company, any of its Subsidiaries or any of its or their directors, officers or employees (in their capacities as such). Except as disclosed in Section 4.15 of the Company Disclosure Schedule or the Company SEC Documents, as of the date of this Agreement there is no claim, action, suit, litigation, legal, administrative or arbitration proceeding, whether formal or informal (including, without limitation, any claim or notice of intent to institute any matter) (a "Proceeding"), which is pending or, to the Company's Knowledge, threatened against or involving the Company, any of its

Subsidiaries or any of its or their directors, officers or employees (in their capacities as such) or properties, capital stock or assets.

SECTION 4.16 CONTRACTS AND OTHER AGREEMENTS. (a) Other than (1) contracts and other agreements disclosed in Section 4.16 of the Company Disclosure Schedule or (2) contracts between the Company and its direct or indirect wholly owned Subsidiaries or between the Company's direct or indirect wholly owned Subsidiaries, none of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is a party to or bound by any:

- (i) contracts and other agreements with, or loans to, any current or former officer, director, employee, consultant, agent or other representative of the Company or its Subsidiaries, or any current stockholder of the Company, or any affiliate (excluding the Company and its Subsidiaries) or Family Member of the foregoing persons, other than pursuant to Plans described in Section 4.23 of the Company Disclosure Schedule;
- (ii) contracts and other agreements with any labor union or association representing any employee;
- (iii) contracts and other agreements for the purchase or sale of equipment or services, which involve the receipt or payment by the Company or its Subsidiaries of an amount in excess of \$20,000 per month (in the aggregate in the case of any related series of contracts and other agreements);
- (iv) contracts and other agreements for the sale of any of the assets or properties of the Company or its Subsidiaries or for the grant to any person of any preferential rights to purchase any of the assets or properties of the Company or its Subsidiaries, which involve the receipt or payment by the Company or its Subsidiaries of an amount in excess of \$20,000 (in the aggregate in the case of any related series of contracts and other agreements);
- (v) contracts and other agreements calling for an aggregate purchase price or payments in any one year of more than \$100,000 payable by the Company or its Subsidiaries in any one case (in the aggregate in the case of any related series of contracts and other agreements);
- (vi) contracts and other agreements, whether or not currently in effect, relating to the acquisition by the Company or its Subsidiaries of any business of, or the

A-10

15

disposition of any business involving the Company or its Subsidiaries to, any other person;

(vii) contracts relating to the disposition or acquisition of any investment or of any interest in any person, which involved the receipt or payment by the Company or its Subsidiaries of an amount in excess of \$20,000 (in the aggregate in the case of any related series of contracts and other agreements);

- (viii) joint venture and similar agreements which would involve the receipt or payment by the Company or its Subsidiaries of an amount in excess of \$50,000 (in the aggregate in the case of any related series of contracts or other agreements);
- (ix) contracts and other agreements, whether or not currently in effect, under which the Company or its Subsidiaries agreed to indemnify any party or to share tax liability of any party, which could involve the payment by the Company or its Subsidiaries of an amount in excess of \$20,000 (in the aggregate in the case of any related series of contracts or other agreements);
- (x) contracts and other agreements containing covenants of the Company or its Subsidiaries, or, to the Company's Knowledge, its officers, directors or employees, not to compete in or solicit employees in any line of business or with any person in any geographical area or covenants of any other person not to compete with or solicit employees from the Company in any line of business or in any geographical area;
- (xi) contracts and other agreements relating to any loan or other extension of credit by the Company or its Subsidiaries to a stockholder, officer or director of the Company or its Subsidiaries or from a stockholder of the Company to the Company;
- (xii) contracts and other agreements relating to the borrowing of money by, or indebtedness of, the Company or its Subsidiaries or the direct or indirect guaranty by the Company or its Subsidiaries of any obligation or indebtedness of any other person or Governmental Entity (other than any accounts receivable or accounts payable of the Company or its Subsidiaries), including, without limitation, any (a) agreement or arrangement relating to the maintenance of compensating balances, (b) agreement or arrangement with respect to lines of credit, (c) agreement to advance or supply funds to any other person other than in the ordinary course of business, (d) agreement to pay for property, products or services of any other person even if such property, products or services are not conveyed, delivered or rendered, (e) keep-well, make-whole or maintenance of working capital or earnings or similar agreement, and (f) guaranty with respect to any lease or other similar periodic payments to be made by any such person;
- (xiii) contracts and other agreements relating to the provision by or to the Company or its Subsidiaries of third party management or administration services, which involve the receipt or payment by the Company or its Subsidiaries of an amount in excess of \$50,000 (in the aggregate in the case of any related series of contracts and other agreements);
- (xiv) each lease of personal property which requires annual lease payments in excess of \$50,000 and each Lease;

A-11

- of its Subsidiaries obtains or grants insurance or reinsurance;
- (xvi) contracts and other agreements between the Company or its Subsidiaries and any Governmental Entity;
- (xvii) contracts and other agreements which require payments generated by a change in control of the Company; and
- (xviii) contracts and other agreements, whether or not currently in effect, relating to disposal of any controlled or hazardous substance or waste.
- (b) Each such contract and other agreement is valid, in full force and effect and binding upon the Company and its Subsidiaries, except for failures to be in full force and effect that would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect and, to the Company's Knowledge, the other parties thereto in accordance with its terms, and neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is in default under any of them, except for defaults that would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect, and the Company has no Knowledge of any threat of cancellation or termination thereunder, nor will the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement result in a default under any such contract or other agreement or the right to terminate such contract or other agreement, except for cancellations, terminations, defaults, or rights to terminate that would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect. No Permits or other documents or agreements with, or issued by or filed with, any person, have been granted to any other person that provide the right to use any real or tangible personal property comprising any portion of the assets of the Company except for grants that would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect. Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is a party to any contract, commitment, arrangement or agreement which would, following the Closing, restrain or restrict Parent or any affiliate of Parent, from operating the business of the Company in the manner in which it is currently operated, except for contracts, commitments, arrangements or agreement that would not individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect.

SECTION 4.17 LOAN PORTFOLIOS. The Company's and its Subsidiaries' outstanding loan portfolios were originated or acquired in the ordinary course of business, and a true and complete list of such portfolios, as of the date hereof, with information included thereon as to the principal terms of, interest rate, and maturity date thereof, as of such date, is listed in Section 4.17 of the Company Disclosure Schedule, provided that such Section shall not include loans that are written off. Except as disclosed in Section 4.17 of the Company Disclosure Schedule, to the Company's Knowledge, as of September 30, 2000, none of the loans included in such portfolios is in default in the payment of principal or interest or materially impaired. All loans included in such portfolio comply with all laws and regulations of each of the states to which the Company is subject thereto except for noncompliances that would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect.

SECTION 4.18 REAL PROPERTY. (a) Section 4.18 of the Company Disclosure Schedule sets forth (i) a list and summary description of all leases, subleases, licenses, occupancy agreements or other agreements, written and oral, together with any amendments or modifications thereto (each a "Lease" and collectively, the "Leases") with respect to (A) all real property leased by the Company or its

Subsidiaries (whether as lessor or lessee and including those in the names of nominees or other entities) and used or occupied in connection with the business of the

A-12

17

Company or its Subsidiaries (the "Leased Real Property") and (B) all real property leased or subleased by the Company or its Subsidiaries, as lessor or sublessor, to third parties (such Section 4.18 of the Company Disclosure Schedule to include the date of each Lease, the address of the respective Leased Real Property, the amount of square feet of such Leased Real Property, the Lease term commencement date, the Lease term expiration date, any renewal options and any early termination provisions in each case with respect to each portion of the Leased Real Property); and (ii) a list and summary description of all real property owned by the Company or its Subsidiaries (the "Owned Real Property").

- (b) Each Lease is, with respect to the Company and its Subsidiaries, in full force and effect, and to the Company's Knowledge, is in full force and effect with respect to each other party thereto except for failures to be in full force and effect that would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect. The Company and each of its Subsidiaries have performed all obligations required to be performed by it to date under, and is not in default in respect of, any Lease, and no event has occurred which, with due notice or lapse of time or both, would constitute such a default by the Company or its Subsidiaries, except for defaults that would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect. To the Knowledge of the Company, there is no default asserted thereunder by any other party thereto, except for defaults that would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect. All material rentals and other payments due under each such Lease have been duly paid.
- (c) The Company's or its Subsidiaries', as the case may be, title to the Owned Real Property and improvements thereon is as set forth on Section 4.18(c) of the Company Disclosure Schedule, subject only to the title exceptions specified therein. None of the Owned Real Property is subject to any right or option of any other person, to purchase or otherwise obtain title to such property. No person other than the Company or its Subsidiaries, as the case may be, has any right to use, occupy or lease all or any portion of the Owned Real Property except for rights that would not, individually or in the aggregate, result in a Company Material Adverse Effect.
- (d) The Company has not received any notice of any violation of any applicable building, zoning, land use or other similar statutes, laws, ordinances, regulations, permits or other requirements (including, without limitation, the Americans with Disabilities Act) in respect of the Leased Real Properties, which has not been heretofore remedied, and there does not exist any such violations which, individually or in the aggregate, could have a Company Material Adverse Effect. The Company has not received any notice that any operations on or uses of the Leased Real Properties constitute non-conforming uses under any applicable building, zoning, land use or other similar statutes, laws, ordinances, regulations, permits or other requirements which would result, individually or in the aggregate, in a Company Material Adverse Effect. The Company has no Knowledge of nor has

received any notice (other than published notice not actually received) of any pending or contemplated rezoning proceeding affecting the Leased Real Properties which would, individually or in the aggregate, result in a Company Material Adverse Effect.

(e) Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has received notice from any insurance carrier regarding defects or inadequacies in the Leased Real Properties, which, if not corrected, would result in termination of the Company's or its Subsidiaries' insurance coverage therefor or an increase in the cost thereof which defects, inadequacies or terminations would result, individually or in the aggregate, in a Company Material Adverse Effect.

A-13

18

- (f) To the Knowledge of the Company, there is no pending or threatened: (i) condemnation of any part of the Leased Real Properties by any Governmental Entity; (ii) special assessment against any part of the Leased Real Properties; or (iii) litigation against the Company or any of its Subsidiaries for breach of any restrictive covenant affecting any part of the Leased Real Properties which in the case of each of clauses (i), (ii) and (iii) would result, individually or in the aggregate, in a Company Material Adverse Effect.
- (g) The improvements at the Leased Real Properties are in good condition and repair, ordinary wear and tear excepted, and have not suffered any casualty or other damage which has not been repaired which would result, individually or in the aggregate, in a Company Material Adverse Effect.
- (h) Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries own any real property other than foreclosed real property as set forth in Schedule 4.18 of the Company Disclosure Schedule.
- SECTION 4.19 INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY. (a) The Company and its Subsidiaries own or otherwise possess all rights as are necessary to use, all patents (and applications therefor), patent rights and disclosures, trademarks, trademark rights, service marks, service mark rights, trade names, trade name rights, registered copyrights (and applications therefore), process know-how, inventions, discoveries, systems, scientific, technical, engineering and marketing data, technology, trade secrets software programs and codes (both source and object), formulae and techniques used in or necessary for the conduct of its business and other proprietary information except as would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect (collectively, the "Intellectual Property Rights"). Section 4.19 of the Company Disclosure Schedule sets forth a true and complete list of the Company's and its Subsidiaries' material Intellectual Property Rights.
  - (b) To the Company's Knowledge, neither the Company or any of its Subsidiaries has received notice or otherwise has reason to know of any conflict or alleged conflict with the rights of others pertaining to the Intellectual Property Rights. To the Company's Knowledge, the businesses of the Company and its Subsidiaries, as presently conducted, do not infringe upon or violate any intellectual property rights of others. The Company and its Subsidiaries have the unrestricted right to use, free and clear of any

rights or claims of others, all trade secrets, processes, customer lists and other rights incident to its businesses as now conducted other than restrictions that would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect.

(c) Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is currently obligated or under any existing liability to make royalty or other payments to any owner of, licensor of, or other claimant to, any patent, trademark, service names, trade names, copyrights, or other intangible asset, with respect to the use thereof or in connection with the conduct of its business as now conducted or otherwise except for obligations or liabilities that would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect. To the Company's Knowledge, no employee of the Company or its Subsidiaries has violated any employment agreement or proprietary information agreement which he had with a previous employer or any patent policy of such employer, or is a party to or threatened by any litigation concerning any patents, trademarks, trade secrets, service names, trade names, copyrights, licenses and the like except for violations that would not result in a Company Material Adverse Effect.

A - 14

19

SECTION 4.20 RECEIVABLES. All accounts receivable and vendor receivables which exceed \$200,000 for a single receivable reflected in the Company Interim Financial Statements, and all accounts receivable and vendor receivables which exceed \$200,000 for a single receivable arising subsequent to September 30, 2000, represent bona fide transactions that have arisen in the ordinary course of business and are valid and existing.

SECTION 4.21 BANKING. Section 4.21 of the Company Disclosure Schedule contains a complete list of all of the bank accounts and lines of credit owned or used by the Company and its Subsidiaries, and the names of all persons with authority to withdraw funds from, or execute drafts or checks on, each such account.

SECTION 4.22 LIENS. Except as set forth in Section 4.22 of the Company Disclosure Schedule, the Company and its Subsidiaries have good title to all of its respective assets and properties, in each case free and clear of any lien or other encumbrance, except for (i) liens or other encumbrances securing taxes, assessments, governmental charges or levies, or the claims of materialmen, carriers, landlords and like persons, all of which are not yet delinquent or which are being contested in good faith or (ii) liens or other encumbrances of a character that do not materially detract from the value of the property subject thereto or impair the use of or the access to the property subject thereto, or impair the operation of the Company or its Subsidiaries or detract from its business.

SECTION 4.23 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS. (a) Section 4.23(a) of the Company Disclosure Schedule sets forth all "employee benefit plans", as defined in Section 3(3) of ERISA, and all severance pay, sick leave, vacation pay, disability, retirement benefits, deferred compensation, bonus pay, incentive pay, stock options, hospitalization insurance, medical insurance, life insurance, scholarships or tuition reimbursement plans or agreements, maintained by the Company or to which the Company has any liability (contingent or otherwise) thereunder for current or former employees of the Company. Each of

the employee benefit plans, practices and arrangements set forth in Section 4.23 of the Company Disclosure Schedule shall hereafter be referred to as a "Plan" (or "Plans" as the context may require).

- (b) None of the Plans is a "multiemployer plan," as defined in Section 3(37) of ERISA or a "defined benefit plan," as defined in Section 3(35) of ERISA.
- (c) Each of the Plans that is intended to qualify under Section 401(a) of the Code, and the trusts maintained pursuant thereto, has been determined to be exempt from federal income taxation under Section 501 of the Code by the IRS (or remain within the remedial amendment period for obtaining an initial determination of exemption from tax), and nothing has occurred with respect to the operation of any such Plan which could cause the loss of such qualification or exemption and thereby result in a Company Material Adverse Effect.
- (d) All contributions (including all employer contributions and employee salary reduction contributions) required to have been made under the Plans or by law to any funds or trusts established thereunder or in connection therewith have been made by the due date thereof (including any valid extensions), except for any failure to contribute that would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect.
  - (e) Intentionally Omitted.
- (f) True, correct and complete copies of the following documents, with respect to each of the Plans, have been delivered to Parent by the Company:(i) the most recent plan document and related trust documents, and amendments thereto;(ii) the most recent IRS

A-15

20

Forms 5500; (iii) the last IRS determination letter; and (iv) the most recent summary plan descriptions.

- (g) To the Company's Knowledge, there are no pending actions, claims or lawsuits which have been asserted or instituted against the Plans, the assets of any of the trusts under such plans or the plan sponsor or the plan administrator, or against any fiduciary of the Plans with respect to the operation of such Plans (other than routine benefit claims or actions seeking qualified domestic relations orders), nor does the Company have Knowledge of any threatened claim or lawsuit.
- (h) To the Company's Knowledge, the Plans have in all material respects been maintained in accordance with their terms and with all provisions of ERISA and the Code (including applicable regulations thereunder) and other applicable federal and state laws and regulations, and the Company has not engaged in a "prohibited transaction" within the meaning of Section 406 of ERISA or 4975 of the Code that would result in liability to the Company or Parent. To the Company's Knowledge, no fiduciary has any liability for breach of fiduciary duty or any other failure to act or comply in connection with the administration or investment of the assets of any Plan.

- (i) None of the Plans provide retiree life or retiree health benefits coverage except as may be required under applicable state law, Section 4980B of the Code or Section 601 of ERISA or at the expense of the participant or the participant's beneficiary or death benefits under the Company's retirement plan.
- (j) Except pursuant to the Employment Agreements or pursuant to Section 6.18 and except as disclosed in Section 4.23(i) of the Company Disclosure Schedule, neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby will (i) result in any payment becoming due to any employee (current, former or retired) of the Company, (ii) increase any benefits otherwise payable under any Plan or (iii) result in the acceleration of the time of payment or vesting of any benefits under any Plan.

SECTION 4.24 EMPLOYEE RELATIONS. (a) The Company and its Subsidiaries are in compliance with all laws regarding employment, wages, hours, equal opportunity and collective bargaining, except for non-compliances that would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect. To the Company's Knowledge, (i) neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is engaged in any unfair labor practice or discriminatory employment practice, (ii) no complaint of any such practice against the Company or its Subsidiaries has been filed or threatened to be filed with or by the National Labor Relations Board, the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission or any other administrative agency, federal or state, that regulates labor or employment practices, and (iii) no grievance has been filed or, threatened to be filed, against the Company or its Subsidiaries by any employee pursuant to any collective bargaining or other employment agreement to which the Company is a party or is bound. The Company and its Subsidiaries are in compliance with all applicable foreign, federal, state and local laws and regulations regarding occupational safety and health standards, except for non-compliances that would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect, and has received no complaints from any foreign, federal, state or local agency or regulatory body alleging violations of any such laws and regulations.

(b) Except as set forth in Section 4.24(b) of the Company Disclosure Schedule, the employment of all persons employed by the Company and its Subsidiaries is terminable at will. To the Company's Knowledge, all employees of the Company and its Subsidiaries are

A-16

21

either United States citizens or resident aliens specifically authorized to engage in employment in the United States in accordance with all applicable laws.

SECTION 4.25 INSURANCE. Section 4.25 of the Company Disclosure Schedule sets forth a list of all policies or binders of errors and omissions, fire, liability, product liability, workmen's compensation, vehicular and other insurance (excluding Plans) held by or on behalf of the Company or its Subsidiaries (collectively, the "Insurance Policies"). Such Insurance Policies are in full force and effect. In addition, Section 4.25 of the Company Disclosure Schedule sets forth in respect of the Insurance Policies (i) a description of occurrences reported involving amounts in excess of \$10,000 and (ii) the aggregate amount paid out under each such policy during the period from

July 1, 1999 through the date hereof. There have been no disputes regarding denial or nonpayment of claims under any Insurance Policy since July 1, 1999, other than routine disputes under Insurance Policy coverage provided under the Plans.

SECTION 4.26 OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, EMPLOYEES, CONSULTANTS. Section 4.26 of the Company Disclosure Schedule sets forth (i) the name of each officer and director of the Company or its Subsidiaries and the amount of compensation paid during fiscal 2000 and the amount reasonably expected to be paid during fiscal 2001, (ii) the name of each other employee or class of employees of the Company or its Subsidiaries who either (x) received compensation in fiscal 2000 in excess of \$100,000 or (y) is anticipated to receive, based on current compensation levels, compensation in fiscal 2001 in excess of \$100,000, indicating the amount of such compensation for such persons for fiscal 2000 and fiscal 2001; and (iii) a list of all employees employed by the Company at September 30, 2000. Except as disclosed in Section 4.26 of the Company Disclosure Schedule, the Company or any of its Subsidiaries does not employ any individual as a consultant, whose employment cannot be terminated on not less than 30 days' notice without penalty.

SECTION 4.27 TRANSACTIONS WITH DIRECTORS, OFFICERS AND AFFILIATES. Except as disclosed in Section 4.27 of the Company Disclosure Schedule or in the Company SEC Documents, since July 1, 1999, there have been no transactions between the Company and any director, officer, employee, stockholder or other affiliate of the Company or loans, guarantees or pledges to, by or for the Company from, to, by or for any of such persons. Since July 1, 1999, other than as disclosed in the Company SEC Documents or in Section 4.27 of the Company Disclosure Schedule, none of the officers, directors or employees of the Company, or any spouse or relative of any of such persons, has been a director or officer of, or has had any direct or indirect interest in, any person or business enterprise which during such period has been a supplier, customer or sales agent of the Company or has competed with or been engaged in any business of the kind being conducted by the Company.

SECTION 4.28 OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY. Except as disclosed in Section 4.16 or 4.28 of the Company Disclosure Schedule and except as may result from the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, since July 1, 2000, the Company has not:

- (i) amended its certificate of incorporation or by-laws or merged with or into or consolidated with any other Person, subdivided or in any way reclassified any shares of its capital stock or changed or agreed to change in any manner the rights of its outstanding capital stock or the character of its business;
- (ii) (A) issued or sold or purchased, or issued options or rights to subscribe to, or entered into any contracts or commitments to issue or sell or purchase, any shares of its capital stock or any of its bonds, notes, debentures or other evidences of indebtedness or (B) modified the terms of its options, rights or any contracts or

A - 17

22

commitments to issue or sell or purchase any shares of its capital stock or any of its bonds, notes, debentures or other evidences of

- (iii) entered into or amended any agreement with any labor union or association representing any employee, or, except for Plans referred to in Section 4.23 of the Company Disclosure Schedule, made any wage or salary increase or bonus, or increase in any other direct or indirect compensation, for or to any of its officers, directors, employees, individuals who are consultants, agents or other representatives in each case in excess of \$10,000 for any such individual, or commitment or agreement to make or pay the same;
- (iv) except in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, declared or made any Distributions to any stockholder or made any direct or indirect redemption, retirement, purchase or other acquisition of any shares of its capital stock;
- (v) made any change in its accounting methods or practices or made any change in depreciation or amortization policies, except as required by law or GAAP;
- (vi) made any loan or advance to its stockholders or to any of the directors, officers or employees of the Company, consultants, agents or other representatives, or otherwise than in the ordinary course of business made any other loan or advance;
- (vii) except in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, (A) entered into any Lease; (B) sold, abandoned or made any other disposition of any of its assets or properties; (C) granted or suffered any lien or other encumbrance on any of its assets or properties; (D) entered into or amended any contract or other agreement to which it is a party, or by or to which it or its assets or properties are bound or subject which if existing on the date hereof would need to be disclosed in Section 4.16 of the Company Disclosure Schedule;
- (viii) made or entered into any agreement to make any acquisition of all or a substantial part of the assets, properties, securities or business of any other person;
- (ix) paid, directly or indirectly, any of its Liabilities before the same became due in accordance with its terms or otherwise than in the ordinary course of business;
- (x) terminated or failed to renew, or received any written threat (that was not subsequently withdrawn) to terminate or fail to renew, any contract or other agreement that is or was material to the assets, liabilities, properties, business, operations, condition (financial or otherwise), operations or prospects of the Company;
- (xi) made any revaluation of any assets or write-down of the value of any loans or receivables of the Company in excess of \$50,000;
- (xii) except in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, accelerated the collection, or sale to third parties, of any receivables of the Company, or delayed the payment of any payables of the Company;

(xiii) entered into any other contract or other agreement or other transaction that obligates the Company to pay an amount in excess of \$50,000, which contract is not terminable by the Company upon not more than 30 days' notice; or

A-18

23

(xiv) suffered any damage, destruction or loss, whether covered by insurance or not, which has had or could have a Company Material Adverse Effect.

SECTION 4.29 BROKERAGE. Except for Josephthal & Co., Inc., no broker, agent or finder has acted, directly or indirectly, for the Company or, to the Knowledge of the Company, any of the Company stockholders, nor has the Company or, to the Knowledge of the Company, any of the Company stockholders, incurred any obligation to pay any brokerage fee, agent's commission or finder's fee or other commission in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. The Company has furnished to Parent a copy of any engagement letter relating to such broker, agent or finder.

SECTION 4.30 TAXES. (a) The Company and, as applicable, each of its Subsidiaries (i) have duly and timely filed (or there have been filed on their behalf) all material Tax Returns required to be filed (after taking into account all available extensions), (ii) have timely paid or adequately provided for in accordance with GAAP all Taxes due in respect of the periods covered by such Tax Returns, and (iii) have withheld and, if due, paid all Taxes required to have been withheld and, if due, paid in connection with amounts paid or owing to any employee, independent contractor, creditor, stockholder, or other third party, except, in each case, where the failure so to file, pay or provide, or withhold and pay would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect.

- (b) Except as set forth in Section 4.30 of the Company Disclosure Schedule, as of the date of this Agreement (i) no material claim for assessment or collection of Taxes is presently being asserted against the Company or its Subsidiaries, (ii) neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is a party to any pending action, proceeding, or investigation by any governmental taxing authority relating to a material Tax, and (iii) the Company does not have Knowledge of any such threatened action, proceeding or investigation.
- (c) Except as set forth in Section 4.30 of the Company Disclosure Schedule, neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is, or has ever been, a party to or bound by any tax indemnity agreement, tax sharing agreement, tax allocation agreement or similar allocation agreement or similar contract or arrangement.
- (d) Except as set forth in Section 4.30 of the Company Disclosure Schedule, neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has requested any extension of time within which to file any income Tax Return which return has not since been filed, nor has the Company or any of its Subsidiaries waived the running of any statute of limitations with respect to any income Taxes.
  - (e) Except as set forth in Section 4.30(e) of the Company Disclosure

Schedule, the Company has delivered to Parent true and correct copies of all filed income Tax Returns (including information returns and Forms 1120) of the Company and its Subsidiaries which refer to any period of time from January 1, 1995 through the date of this Agreement or to any event which occurred during that period of time. Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has filed an election under Section 341(f) of the Code that is applicable to the Company, any of its Subsidiaries or any asset held by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries. Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has agreed, or is required, to make any adjustment under Section 481(a) of the Code by reason of a change in accounting method or otherwise. Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is subject to or a member of any joint venture, partnership or other arrangement or contract which is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes. The Company has not been a United States real property holding corporation within the meaning of

A-19

24

Section 897(c)(2) of the Code during the applicable period specified in Section 897(c)(1)(A)(ii) of the Code.

- (f) Section 4.30 of the Company Disclosure Schedule lists each state in which the Company and its Subsidiaries are required to file Tax Returns. No written claim has been made after January 1, 1995 by any authority in a jurisdiction where the Company or any of its Subsidiaries does not file Tax Returns that it is or may be subject to taxation by that jurisdiction.
- SECTION 4.31 ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS. Except as disclosed in the Company SEC Documents or as set forth in Section 4.31 of the Company Disclosure Schedule:
  - (a) The Company and its Subsidiaries (i) are in compliance in all material respects with all Environmental Laws; (ii) have obtained and currently maintain in full force and effect all Environmental Permits, the failure to obtain or maintain would, individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect; and (iii) are in compliance with all terms and conditions of such Environmental Permits except for noncompliances that would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect.
  - (b) To the Company's Knowledge, no event has occurred which, upon the passage of time, the giving of notice, or failure to act would reasonably be expected to give rise to material liability to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries under any Environmental Law.
  - (c) To the Company's Knowledge, no Hazardous Material has been released, spilled, discharged, dumped, disposed of, or otherwise come to be located in, at or beneath any of the Owned Real Property or the Leased Real Property or any properties or assets formerly owned, operated or otherwise controlled by the Company or its Subsidiaries and used in the conduct of the Company's and its Subsidiaries' businesses (i) in material violation of any Environmental Law, or (ii) in such manner as would reasonably be expected to cause a material environmental liability of the Company or its Subsidiaries.
    - (d) To the Company's Knowledge, there are no: (i) aboveground or

underground storage tanks or surface impoundments containing Hazardous Materials; (ii) asbestos containing materials or (iii) PCBs or PCB-containing equipment, located within any portion of the Owned Real Property or the Leased Real Property, the presence which individually or in the aggregate could have a Company Material Adverse Effect.

- (e) To the Company's Knowledge, no liens have been placed upon any Owned Real Property or Leased Real Property in connection with any actual or alleged liability under any Environmental Law.
- (f) There is no pending or, to the Knowledge of the Company, threatened, material claim, litigation or administrative proceeding against the Company arising under any Environmental Law;
- (g) Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has received any notice, claim, demand, suit or request for information from any Governmental Entity or private entity with respect to any liability or alleged liability under any Environmental Law which is outstanding and if adversely decided could reasonably be expected to result in the Company incurring material liability under Environmental Laws, nor, to the Knowledge of the Company, has any other entity whose liability therefor, in whole or in part, may be attributed to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, received such notice, claim, demand, suit or request for information. Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries, nor, to the Company's Knowledge, any prior owner or operator of the Leased Real Property has

A - 20

25

generated, disposed of, or arranged for the disposal of any Hazardous Material except in material compliance with Environmental Law.

- (h) Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has, and, to the Knowledge of the Company, no other entity whose liability therefor, in whole or in part, may be attributed to the Company or its Subsidiaries, disposed of any Hazardous Material at any location which is identified on the current or proposed (i) National Priorities List under 40 C.F.R. 300 Appendix B or (ii) CERCLIS, in each case except as would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect.
- (i) The Company has made available to Parent all material environmental studies and reports pertaining to the Owned Real Property or the Leased Real Property, the operations conducted thereon that are in the Company's possession.

SECTION 4.32 COMPANY ACTION. The Board of Directors of the Company (at a meeting duly called and held) has by the requisite vote of all directors present (a) determined that the Merger is advisable and fair and in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders, (b) approved the Merger in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Delaware Corporation Law and (c) recommended the approval of this Agreement and the Merger by the holders of the Company Common Stock and directed that the Merger be submitted for consideration by the Company's stockholders at the Company Meeting.

SECTION 4.33 OPINION OF FINANCIAL ADVISOR. The Board of Directors of the

Company has received, on the date of this Agreement, the oral opinion of Ryan, Beck & Co., Inc., to be confirmed in writing, to the effect that, as of such date and subject to the assumptions and qualifications contained therein, the Exchange Ratio in the Merger is fair to the holders of the Company Common Stock from a financial point of view. A copy of the written opinion of Ryan, Beck & Co., Inc. will be delivered to Parent as soon as practicable after the date of this Agreement.

SECTION 4.34 CANCELLATION OF CERTAIN AGREEMENTS. Except as set forth in Section 4.34 of the Company Disclosure Schedule, the Company has terminated each of the agreements referred to therein, without any payment of consideration in any form by the Company and without further obligation under such agreement or arising from such termination, provided that such termination may be contingent on the consummation of the Merger so long as the Company does not make any further payment of consideration in any form while this Agreement is in effect, and provided further that nothing in this Section 4.34 shall preclude the Company from paying any consideration under any such agreement to the extent earned prior to the date hereof in accordance with the terms of such agreement.

SECTION 4.35 STATUS OF CERTAIN EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS. The Company has provided to Parent a true and correct copy of the employment agreement between the Company or one of its Subsidiaries, as applicable, and each person listed in Section 4.35 of the Company Disclosure Schedule, and each such agreement is as of the date of this Agreement in full force and effect.

# ARTICLE V REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF PARENT AND SUB

Parent and Sub represent and warrant to the Company that, except as set forth in the disclosure schedule attached hereto (the "Parent Disclosure Schedule"), which Parent

A-21

26

Disclosure Schedule and shall be arranged in paragraphs corresponding to the numbered and lettered paragraphs contained in this Article V:

SECTION 5.1 EXECUTION AND DELIVERY. Each of Parent and Sub has the corporate power and authority to enter into this Agreement and each other agreement, document or instrument contemplated hereby or to be delivered in connection herewith to which such person is a party (the "Parent Documents") and to carry out its respective obligations hereunder and thereunder. The execution, delivery and performance by Parent and Sub of this Agreement and the Parent Documents to which it is a party and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby have been duly authorized by the Board of Directors of Parent and Sub, as applicable (and, in the case of this Agreement, by the Board of Directors of Sub and by Parent as the sole stockholder of Sub). This Agreement constitutes the valid and binding obligation of Parent and Sub and the Parent Documents will constitute the valid and binding obligations of Parent and Sub, when executed by such person, in each case, enforceable in accordance with their respective terms, except as enforcement may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency or other similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights generally and except that the availability of equitable remedies, including specific performance, is subject to the discretion of the court before which any proceeding therefor may be brought. No other corporate

proceedings on the part of Parent or Sub are necessary to authorize this Agreement or the Parent Documents and the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby.

SECTION 5.2 CONSENTS AND APPROVALS. The execution and delivery by Parent and Sub of this Agreement and the Parent Documents to which such person is a party, the performance by Parent and Sub of their respective obligations hereunder and thereunder and the consummation by Parent and Sub of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby do not require Parent or Sub to obtain any consent, approval or action of, or make any filing or registration with or give any notice to, any Governmental Entity, other than (i) in connection, or in compliance, with the provisions of the H-S-R Act, the Securities Act, the Exchange Act, the 1940 Act and the corporation, securities or blue sky laws or regulations of various states, all of which will be duly obtained or made, as the case may be, on or prior to the Closing, and will be in full force and effect on the Closing Date, (ii) the approval of the SBA, (iii) the filing of the Certificate of Merger with the Secretary of State of Delaware and (iv) as to which the failure to so obtain, file or register would not have a material adverse effect on the funding, management, business, properties, assets, condition (financial or otherwise), liabilities, or operations of Parent and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or adversely affect the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby in any material respect, but excluding therefrom any such change, effect, event, occurrence or state of facts resulting from or arising in connection with (A) changes or conditions generally affecting the industries in which Parent or its Subsidiaries operate, except to the extent the changes or conditions referred to in this Clause (A) affect the funding of the Parent and its Subsidiaries or (B) this Agreement, the transactions contemplated hereby or the announcement thereof (a "Parent Material Adverse Effect").

SECTION 5.32 NO BREACH. Except for filings, notices, consents and approvals as may be required by Delaware Corporation Law, the Securities Act, the Exchange Act and the 1940 Act, the execution, delivery and performance by Parent and Sub of this Agreement and the Parent Documents to which either is a party and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby in accordance with the terms and conditions hereof and thereof will not (i) violate any provision of the Certificate of Incorporation or By-Laws of Parent or Sub; (ii) violate, conflict with or result in the breach of any of the terms of, result in any modification of the effect of, otherwise give any other contracting party the right to terminate,

A-22

27

or constitute (or with notice or lapse of time or both, constitute) a default under, any contract or other agreement or instrument to which Parent or any of its Subsidiaries is a party or by or to which the assets or properties of Parent or any of its Subsidiaries may be bound or subject; (iii) violate any order, judgment, injunction, award or decree of any Governmental Entity against, or binding upon, or any agreement with, or condition imposed by, any Governmental Entity, binding upon Parent or any of its Subsidiaries, or upon the securities, assets or business of Parent or any of its Subsidiaries; (iv) violate any statute, law or regulation of any jurisdiction as such statute, law or regulation relates to Parent or any of its Subsidiaries, or to the securities, assets or business of Parent or any of its Subsidiaries; (v) result in the creation or imposition of any lien or other encumbrance or the acceleration of

any indebtedness or other obligation of Parent or any of its Subsidiaries; or (vi) result in the breach of any of the terms or conditions of, constitute a default under, or otherwise cause an impairment of, any Permit of Parent or any of its Subsidiaries; except in the case of (ii) through (vi) for violations, conflicts, breaches, defaults, modifications, impairments, liens or other encumbrances that would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Parent Material Adverse Effect.

SECTION 5.4 SEC DOCUMENTS; FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. (a) Parent has filed to Parent's Knowledge, and will file with the SEC all forms, reports, schedules, statements, exhibits and other documents (collectively, the "Parent SEC Documents") required to be filed on or before the date hereof or the Closing Date, respectively, by it under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act. Parent has furnished or made available to the Company true and correct copies of all Parent SEC Documents filed by Parent since January 1, 1999 and will promptly furnish to the Company any other Parent SEC Document filed by or on behalf of Parent with the SEC from the date hereof to the Closing Date. At the time filed, the Parent SEC Documents filed by Parent since January 1, 1999 (i) did not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading and (ii) complied in all material respects with the applicable requirements of the Securities Act or Exchange Act, as the case may be.

(b) The audited consolidated financial statements of Parent for the period from January 1, 1999 to December 31, 1999, together with the report and opinion thereon of Arthur Andersen LLP which are included in the Parent SEC Documents and have previously been delivered to the Company and the unaudited consolidated financial statements of Parent as of and for the nine months ended September 30, 2000 (the "Parent Interim Financial Statements"), which will be included in the Parent SEC Documents and will be delivered to the Company as soon as they are filed, are collectively referred to herein as the "Parent Financial Statements". The Parent Financial Statements comply as to form in all material respects with applicable accounting requirements and the published rules and regulations of the SEC with respect thereto; and fairly present, in all material respects, on a consolidated basis, the financial position of Parent at, and the results of its operations for, each of the periods then ended and were prepared in conformity with GAAP applied on a consistent basis, except as otherwise disclosed therein and, subject, in the case of the Parent Interim Financial Statements, to normal recurring year-end adjustments, the absence of footnote disclosures, and any other adjustments described therein.

SECTION 5.5 SHARES OF PARENT COMMON STOCK. The shares of Parent Common Stock will, when issued and delivered to the Company stockholders pursuant to Section 3.1(a), be duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid, non-assessable, and free of all liens and other encumbrances of any kind or nature whatsoever.

A-23

28

SECTION 5.6 ORGANIZATION, STANDING AND AUTHORITY OF PARENT AND SUB. Each of Parent and Sub is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of Maryland (in the case of Parent) or Delaware (in the case of Sub), and has all requisite power and authority to own, lease and operate its assets, properties and businesses and to carry on its businesses as

now being conducted or currently proposed to be conducted. Parent is duly qualified as a foreign corporation to do business, and is in good standing, in each jurisdiction where the character of its properties owned or held under lease or the nature of such activities make such qualification necessary, except where the failure to so qualify would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Parent Material Adverse Effect. Sub has not engaged in any business (other than certain organizational matters) since the date of its incorporation. The copies of the Certificate of Incorporation and By-Laws of Parent and Sub included as part of Section 5.6 of the Parent Disclosure Schedule constitute accurate and complete copies of such organizational instruments and accurately reflect all amendments thereto through the date hereof.

SECTION 5.7 CAPITALIZATION. (a) The authorized capital stock of Parent consists of 100,000,000 shares of Parent Common Stock, par value \$0.0001 per share. As of October 27, 2000, there were 81,014,451 shares of Parent Common Stock outstanding and there have been no material changes in such numbers through the date hereof. As of the date hereof, there are no bonds, debentures, notes or other indebtedness issued or outstanding having the right to vote on any matters on which Parent's stockholders may vote. All outstanding shares of Parent Common Stock are duly authorized and are validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable.

(b) The authorized capital stock of Sub consists of 1,000 shares of Sub Common Stock, all of which are duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable.

SECTION 5.8 BROKERAGE. Other than Jolson Merchant Partners, no broker, agent or finder has acted, directly or indirectly, for Parent or Sub, nor have Parent and Sub incurred any obligation to pay any brokerage fees, agent's commissions or finder's fee or commission in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

SECTION 5.9 INFORMATION IN DISCLOSURE DOCUMENTS. None of the information supplied by Parent or Sub for inclusion in the Registration Statement and the Proxy Statement will, in the case of the Proxy Statement or any amendments or supplements thereto, at the time of the mailing of the Proxy Statement and any amendments or supplements thereto, or, in the case of the Registration Statement, at the time it becomes effective and at the Effective Time, contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; provided, however, that this provision shall not apply to statements or omissions in the Registration Statement or Proxy Statement based upon information furnished by the Company for use therein. The Registration Statement will comply as to form in all material respects with the provisions of the Securities Act, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. The Proxy Statement will comply as to form in all material respects with the provisions of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations thereunder. No representation or warranty made by Parent contained in this Agreement and no statement contained in any certificate delivered pursuant to Article VII or any exhibit to this Agreement and the Parent Disclosure Schedule, contains any untrue statement of a material fact or omits or will omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements contained therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.

SECTION 5.10 NO MATERIAL ADVERSE CHANGE. Since January 1, 2000, there has not been any change, event, occurrence or state of facts that has caused, or would reasonably be expected to cause, a Parent Material Adverse Effect.

SECTION 5.11 SUB ACTION. The Board of Directors of Sub (at a meeting duly called and held) has by the requisite vote of all directors present approved the Merger in accordance with the provisions of Section 251 of the Delaware Corporation Law. The sole stockholder of Sub has taken all actions necessary to adopt the Merger.

SECTION 5.12 OPTIONS AND OTHER STOCK RIGHTS. Except for options to purchase Parent Common Stock outstanding under Parent's Amended Stock Option Plan, as amended to date, there is no (i) outstanding option, warrant, call, unsatisfied preemptive right or other agreement of any kind to purchase or otherwise to receive from Parent any of the outstanding, authorized but unissued, unauthorized or treasury shares of Parent Common Stock, Parent Preferred Stock or any other security of the Parent, (ii) outstanding security of any kind convertible into any security of Parent, and (iii) outstanding contract or other agreement to purchase, redeem or otherwise acquire any outstanding shares of Parent Common Stock, Parent Preferred Stock or any other security of Parent.

SECTION 5.13 TAX INFORMATION IN DISCLOSURE DOCUMENTS. (a) Parent and, as applicable, each of its Subsidiaries (i) have duly and timely filed (or there have been filed on their behalf) all material Tax Returns required to be filed (after taking into account all available extensions), (ii) have timely paid or adequately provided for in accordance with GAAP all Taxes due in respect of the periods covered by such Tax Returns, and (iii) have withheld, and if due, paid all Taxes required to be withheld, and if due, paid in connection with amounts paid or owing to any employee, independent contractor, creditor, stockholder or other third party, except, in each case, where the failure so to file, pay or provide, or withhold and pay would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Parent Material Adverse Effect.

(b) As of the date of this Agreement (i) no material claim for assessment or collection of Taxes is presently being asserted against the Parent or its Subsidiaries, (ii) neither the Parent nor any of its Subsidiaries is a party to any pending action, proceeding, or investigation by any governmental taxing authority relating to a material Tax, and (iii) the Parent does not have Knowledge of any such threatened action, proceeding or investigation.

SECTION 5.14 LIABILITIES. To Parent's Knowledge, neither Parent nor any of its Subsidiaries has any liabilities or obligations of any nature, whether or not accrued, contingent or otherwise that is required by GAAP to be reflected or reserved for on the financial statements of the Parent, except (a) liabilities or obligations disclosed or reserved against in the unaudited consolidated interim financial statements of Parent as of and for the nine months ended September 30, 2000 included in Parent SEC Documents or disclosed in the footnotes thereto or in the footnotes to the audited consolidated financial statements of Parent as of and for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999 included in Parent SEC Documents or otherwise disclosed in Parent's 1999 Form 10-K or in Parent's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2000, and (b) liabilities or obligations which do not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Parent Material Adverse Effect.

SECTION 5.15 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. To Parent's Knowledge, Parent is not in violation of any applicable order, judgment, injunction, award or decree, law, ordinance or regulation or any other requirement of any Governmental Entity applicable to Parent or any of its

A-25

30

businesses; Parent has not received notice that any such material violation has been alleged or is being investigated.

SECTION 5.16 PERMITS. To Parent's Knowledge, Parent has obtained all Permits that are necessary for the ownership and conduct of its businesses as presently conducted or currently proposed to be conducted, other than any Permits, the absence of which would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Parent Material Adverse Effect; such Permits are in full force and effect and are sufficient for the ownership and conduct of such businesses as presently conducted or currently proposed to be conducted; to Parent's Knowledge, no violations exist or have been recorded in respect of any material Permit; and no proceeding is pending or, to the Knowledge of Parent, threatened, that would suspend, revoke or limit any Permit.

SECTION 5.17 ACTIONS AND PROCEEDINGS. There are no outstanding orders, judgments, injunctions, awards or decrees of any Governmental Entity against or involving Parent or any of its directors, officers or employees (in their capacities as such). Except as disclosed in the Parent SEC Documents, as of the date of this Agreement there is no Proceeding which is pending or, to Parent's Knowledge, threatened against or involving Parent, any of its Subsidiaries, or any of their directors, officers or employees (in their capacities as such) or properties, capital stock or assets, except where the failure of any of the foregoing to be true does not individually or in the aggregate have a Parent Material Adverse Effect on Parent.

SECTION 5.18 LOAN PORTFOLIO. Parent's loan portfolio was acquired in the ordinary course of business. All loans included in such portfolio comply with all laws and regulations of each of the states to which Parent is subject relating thereto except for noncompliances that would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Parent Material Adverse Effect.

SECTION 5.19 NO PRIOR ACTIVITIES. Except for obligations incurred in connection with its incorporation or organization or the negotiation and consummation of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby, Sub has neither incurred any obligation or liability nor engaged in any business or activity of any type or kind or entered into any agreement or arrangement with any person.

# ARTICLE VI COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS

Each of Parent, Sub and the Company (as applicable) covenant and agree as follows:

SECTION 6.1 CONDUCT OF BUSINESS. (a) Prior to the Effective Time, except as set forth in Section 6.1 of the Company Disclosure Schedule or unless Parent shall otherwise agree in writing:

(i) The Company shall and, shall cause its Subsidiaries to, carry on their respective business in the usual, regular and ordinary course in substantially the same manner as heretofore conducted, and shall use its reasonable efforts to preserve and cause its Subsidiaries to preserve intact their present business organizations, keep available the services of their present officers and employees and preserve their relationships with customers, suppliers and others having business dealings with them to the end that their goodwill and ongoing businesses shall be unimpaired at the Effective Time, except such impairment as would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect. The Company shall and shall cause its Subsidiaries to (i) maintain insurance coverages and their books, accounts and records in the usual

A-26

31

manner consistent with prior practices; (ii) comply in all material respects with all laws, ordinances and regulations of Governmental Entities applicable to the Company and its Subsidiaries; (iii) maintain and keep their properties and equipment in good repair, working order and condition, ordinary wear and tear excepted; and (iv) perform in all material respects its obligations under all contracts and commitments to which it is a party or by which it is bound, in each case other than where the failure to so maintain, comply or perform, either individually or in the aggregate, would result in a Company Material Adverse Effect.

- (ii) The Company shall not and shall cause its Subsidiaries not to undertake any of the actions specified in Section 4.28; provided that this Section 6.1(a)(ii) shall not prohibit the Company or any of its Subsidiaries from (A) revaluing or writing down any loan or receivable as required by any Governmental Entity or in accordance with GAAP or (B) making or committing to make loans in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice.
- (b) Neither Parent, Sub nor the Company shall take or cause to be taken any action or omit to take any action, whether before or after the Effective Time, and Parent and Sub have not taken any action or omitted to take any action, in each case which would disqualify the Merger as a "reorganization" within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code. The Company, on the one hand, and Parent and Sub, on the other hand, shall execute and deliver to legal counsel to the Company and Parent certificates substantially in the form of Exhibits 6.1(b)-1 and 6.1(b)-2, respectively, at such time or times as reasonably requested by such legal counsel in connection with the delivery of opinions in accordance with Sections 8.7 and 9.3 hereof, or as required in connection with any filings with the SEC, and the Company and Parent shall each provide a copy thereof to the other parties hereto. The parties agree to make such changes to the certificates as they reasonably agree are necessary in connection with the delivery of such opinions. Prior to the Effective Time, none of the Company, Parent or Sub shall take or cause to be taken any action that would cause to be untrue (or fail to take or cause not to be taken any action that would cause to be untrue) any of the representations in Exhibits 6.1(b)-1 or 6.1(b)-2.

(c) Prior to the Effective Time, unless the Company shall otherwise consent in writing (which shall not be unreasonably withheld), Parent shall in all material respects carry on its respective businesses in the usual, regular and ordinary course, provided, that for purposes of this Section 6.1(c), "ordinary course" shall mean any activities or business related, directly or indirectly, to lending, financing, leasing and the like.

SECTION 6.2 LITIGATION INVOLVING THE COMPANY. Prior to the Closing Date, the Company shall notify Parent of any actions or proceedings of the type required to be described in Sections 4.15, 4.30 or 4.31 that are threatened or commenced against the Company, any of its Subsidiaries, or against any officer or director, property or asset of the Company, or with respect to the Company's affairs, promptly upon the Company becoming aware thereof, and of any requests of the Company or, to the Knowledge of the Company, any Company stockholder, for additional information or documentary materials by any Governmental Entity in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby promptly upon the Company becoming aware thereof. As to compliance with such requests for such information, the Company shall consult with and obtain the consent of Parent, which consent shall not be withheld unreasonably; provided that such consent shall be unnecessary where such information is required by law to be provided.

A-27

32

SECTION 6.3 CONTINUED EFFECTIVENESS OF REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE PARTIES. From the date hereof through the Closing Date, (a) the Company shall use all reasonable efforts to conduct its affairs in such a manner so that, except as otherwise contemplated or permitted by this Agreement, the representations and warranties of the Company contained in Article IV shall continue to be true and correct in all material respects (or in all respects in the case of any representation or warranty which refers to a Company Material Adverse Effect or otherwise includes a concept of materiality) on and as of the Closing Date as if made on and as of the Closing Date, except that any such representations and warranties that are given as of a particular date and relate solely to a particular date or period shall be true and correct in all material respects (or in all respects in the case of any representation or warranty which refers to a Company Material Adverse Effect or otherwise includes a concept of materiality) as of such date or period; (b) Parent and Sub shall use their respective reasonable efforts to conduct their affairs in such a manner so that, except as otherwise contemplated or permitted by this Agreement, the representations and warranties contained in Article V shall continue to be true and correct in all material respects (or in all respects in the case of any representation or warranty which refers to a Parent Material Adverse Effect or otherwise includes a concept of materiality) on and as of the Closing Date as if made on and as of the Closing Date, except that any such representations and warranties that are given as of a particular date and relate solely to a particular date or period shall be true and correct in all material respects (or in all respects in the case of any representation or warranty which refers to a Parent Material Adverse Effect or otherwise includes a concept of materiality) as of such date or period; (c) the Company shall promptly notify Parent and Sub of any event, condition or circumstance occurring from the date hereof through the Closing Date of which the Company becomes aware that would cause any material revisions to the Company Disclosure Schedule provided by the Company pursuant to this Agreement, or that would constitute a violation or breach of this Agreement by the Company; and (d) Parent and Sub shall promptly notify the

Company of any event, condition or circumstance occurring from the date hereof through the Closing Date of which it becomes aware that would cause any material revisions to the Parent Disclosure Schedule provided by Parent or Sub pursuant to this Agreement, or that would constitute a violation or breach of this Agreement by Parent or Sub. No such notification shall be deemed an amendment to the Disclosure Schedules to this Agreement, except as otherwise provided by this Agreement.

SECTION 6.4 CORPORATE EXAMINATIONS AND INVESTIGATIONS;
CONFIDENTIALITY. (a) The Company shall cooperate with Parent as Parent shall reasonably request in connection with the Parent's due diligence review of the Company, to the extent necessary to confirm the accuracy of the Company's representations and warranties. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Parent will not contact, in connection with the transactions contemplated by the Agreement, any customers, suppliers or employees of the Company without obtaining the prior consent of the Company, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.

(b) If this Agreement terminates, the Confidentiality Agreement shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with its terms. If this Agreement is not terminated, the Confidentiality Agreement shall expire and be of no further force or effect following the Effective Time.

SECTION 6.5 INDEMNIFICATION OF COMPANY OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS. (a) Parent agrees, for a period of six years following the Effective Time, not to amend the indemnification provisions set forth in the Certificate of Incorporation or By-Laws of the Surviving Corporation in a manner that would adversely affect the rights of the Company's officers, directors and employees to indemnification thereunder and agrees to cause the Surviving Corporation to

A-28

33

fulfill and honor such obligations to the maximum extent permitted by law; provided, however, that nothing in this Section 6.5 shall prevent Parent from effecting any merger, reorganization or consolidation of the Surviving Corporation, provided that, Parent agrees to satisfy any amounts that would have been payable by the Surviving Corporation (or any successor) and that were not otherwise paid pursuant to the indemnification provisions set forth in the Certificate of Incorporation or By-Laws of the Surviving Corporation for a period commencing at the Effective Time and continuing six years thereafter.

(b) Parent shall cause to be maintained, for a period of not less than six (6) years after the Effective Time, all of Company's and its Subsidiaries' current directors' and officers' insurance and indemnification policies to the extent that such policies provide coverage for events occurring prior to the Effective Time (collectively, the "D&O Insurance") for all current or former directors, officers or employees of the Company or its Subsidiaries; provided, however, that Parent may, in lieu of maintaining such existing D&O Insurance as provided above, and shall, if the existing D&O Insurance expires or is terminated or canceled during such six (6) year period, cause comparable coverage to be provided under any policy maintained for the benefit of the directors, officers and employees of Parent or any of its Subsidiaries; and provided, further, that (i) the issuer thereof shall have a claims-paying rating at least equal to the issuer of the existing D&O Insurance; and (ii) the terms thereof shall be no less advantageous to the directors, officers and employees of Company

and its Subsidiaries than the existing D&O Insurance.

SECTION 6.6 REGISTRATION STATEMENT/PROXY STATEMENT. As promptly as practicable after the execution of this Agreement, the Company and Parent shall prepare and file with the SEC preliminary proxy materials which shall constitute the preliminary Proxy Statement and a preliminary prospectus with respect to the Parent Common Stock to be issued in connection with the Merger. As promptly as practicable after comments are received from the SEC with respect to the preliminary proxy materials and after the furnishing by the Company and Parent of all information required to be contained therein, the Company shall file with the SEC the definitive Proxy Statement and Parent shall file with the SEC the definitive Proxy Statement and the Registration Statement and Parent and the Company shall use all reasonable efforts to cause the Registration Statement to become effective as soon thereafter as practicable.

SECTION 6.7 COMPLIANCE WITH THE SECURITIES ACT. (a) Prior to the Effective Time the Company shall deliver to Parent a list of names and addresses of each person who, in the Company's reasonable judgment, is an affiliate within the meaning of Rule 145 of the rules and regulations promulgated under the Securities Act (the "Affiliates").

(b) The Company shall use its reasonable efforts to obtain a written agreement from each person who is identified as a possible Affiliate pursuant to clause (a) above, in the form previously approved by the parties and attached hereto as Exhibit 6.7(b), that he or she will not offer to sell, sell or otherwise dispose of any of the Parent Common Stock issued to him or her pursuant to the Merger, except in compliance with Rule 145 or another exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act. The Company shall deliver such written agreements to Parent on or prior to the Effective Time.

SECTION 6.8 NASDAQ LISTING. Parent shall use its reasonable efforts to list on the Nasdaq National Market, the Parent Common Stock to be issued pursuant to the Merger.

SECTION 6.9 ACQUISITION PROPOSALS. (a) The Company agrees that neither it nor any of its Subsidiaries, nor any of the officers and directors of any of them shall, and that it shall direct and use its reasonable efforts to cause its and its Subsidiaries' employees, agents and

A-29

34

representatives (including any investment banker, attorney or accountant retained by them or any of their Subsidiaries) not to, directly or indirectly, initiate, solicit or encourage any inquiries or the making of any proposal or offer with respect to a merger, reorganization, share exchange, consolidation or similar transaction, or any purchase of all or 10% or more of the assets or any equity securities of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries (any such proposal or offer being hereinafter referred to as an "Acquisition Proposal"), it being understood that any such activities engaged in prior to the date of this Agreement do not violate this Section 6.9. The Company further agrees that from and after the date hereof neither it nor any of its Subsidiaries nor any of the officers and directors of any of them shall, and that it shall direct and use its reasonable efforts to cause its and its Subsidiaries' employees, agents and representatives (including any investment banker, attorney or accountant

retained by them or any of their Subsidiaries) not to, directly or indirectly, knowingly engage in any negotiations concerning, or provide any confidential information or data to, or have any discussions with, any person relating to an Acquisition Proposal, or otherwise knowingly facilitate any effort or attempt to make or implement an Acquisition Proposal; provided, however, that nothing contained in this Agreement shall prevent the Company or its Board of Directors from (A) complying with Rules 14d-9 and 14e-2 promulgated under the Exchange Act with regard to an Acquisition Proposal; (B) providing information in response to a request therefor by a Person who has made a bona fide written Acquisition Proposal that was not solicited in violation of this Section 6.9(a) if the Board of Directors receives from the Person so requesting such information an executed confidentiality agreement on terms substantially similar to those contained in the Confidentiality Agreement; (C) engaging in any negotiations or discussions with any person who has made an unsolicited bona fide written Acquisition Proposal that was not solicited in violation of this Section 6.9(a); or (D) recommending such an Acquisition Proposal to the shareholders of the Company, if and only to the extent that, (i) in each such case referred to in clause (B), (C) or (D) above, the Board of Directors of the Company determines in good faith after consultation with outside legal counsel that such action is consistent with its directors' fiduciary duties under applicable law and (ii) in each case referred to in clause (C) or (D) above, the Board of Directors of the Company determines in good faith (after consultation with its financial advisor) that such Acquisition Proposal would, if consummated, result in a transaction or a combination of transactions more favorable to the Company's shareholders from a financial point of view than the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (any such more favorable Acquisition Proposal being referred to in this Agreement as a "Superior Proposal"). The Company agrees that it will immediately cease and cause to be terminated any existing activities, discussions or negotiations with any parties conducted heretofore with respect to any Acquisition Proposal. The Company agrees that it will take the necessary steps to promptly inform the individuals or entities referred to in the first sentence hereof of the obligations undertaken in this Section 6.9. The Company agrees that it will notify Parent by the end of the next business day following receipt if any such inquiries, proposals or offers relating to an Acquisition Proposal are received by, any such information is requested from, or any such discussions or negotiations are sought to be initiated or continued with, any of its representatives indicating, in connection with such notice, the name of such person (unless disclosure of such name is precluded by the terms of the proposal or offer in question) and the material terms and conditions of any proposals or offers and thereafter shall keep Parent informed, on a current basis, on the status and terms of any such proposals or offers and the status of any such discussions or negotiations. The Company also agrees that it will promptly request each Person that has heretofore executed a confidentiality agreement in connection with its consideration of acquiring it or any of its Subsidiaries to return or destroy all confidential information heretofore furnished to such Person by or on behalf of it or any of its Subsidiaries.

A-30

35

(b) Notwithstanding anything in this Section 6.9 to the contrary, if, at any time prior to obtaining the Company stockholders' approval of the Merger, the Company's Board of Directors determines in good faith, on the basis of the advice of its financial advisors and outside counsel, in response to an Acquisition Proposal that did not result from a breach of Section 6.9(a), that such proposal is a Superior Proposal, the Company or

its Board of Directors may terminate this Agreement if, and only if, the Company shall substantially concurrently with such termination enter into a definitive agreement containing the terms of a Superior Proposal; provided, however, that the Company shall not terminate this Agreement pursuant to this sentence, and any purported termination pursuant to this sentence shall be void and of no force or effect, unless the Company shall have complied with (i) all the provisions of this Section 6.9, including the notification provisions in this Section 6.9, (ii) the following proviso, and (iii) the payment of the termination fee described in Section 12.2(b) prior to or concurrently with such termination; and provided further, however, that the Company shall not exercise its right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to this Section 6.9 until after five Business Days following Parent's receipt of written notice (a "Notice of Superior Proposal") advising Parent that the Company's Board of Directors has received such a Superior Proposal and that such Board of Directors will, subject to any action taken by Parent pursuant to this sentence, cause the Company to accept such Superior Proposal, specifying the material terms and conditions of such Superior Proposal and (unless disclosure of such name is precluded by the terms of the proposal or offer in question) identifying the person making such Superior Proposal (it being understood and agreed that any amendment to the price or any other material term of such a Superior Proposal shall require an additional Notice of Superior Proposal and a new five Business Day period).

SECTION 6.10 PARENT AND SUB APPROVALS. Parent and Sub shall take all reasonable steps necessary or appropriate to obtain as promptly as practicable all necessary approvals, authorizations and consents of any person or Governmental Entity required to be obtained by Parent and Sub to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby, and will cooperate with the Company in seeking to obtain all such approvals, authorizations and consents. Parent and Sub shall use all reasonable efforts to provide such information to such persons, bodies and authorities as such persons, bodies or authorities or the Company may reasonably request.

SECTION 6.11 COMPANY APPROVALS. The Company shall take all reasonable steps necessary or appropriate to obtain as promptly as practicable all necessary approvals, authorizations and consents of any third party or Governmental Entity required to be obtained by the Company to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and will cooperate with Parent in seeking to obtain all such approvals, authorizations and consents. The Company shall use all reasonable efforts to provide such information to such persons, bodies and authorities as such persons, bodies and authorities or Parent may reasonably request.

SECTION 6.12 NOMINATION TO SURVIVING COMPANY BOARD. Promptly after the Effective Time, Parent shall cause Mr. Robert Tannenhauser and one additional individual designated by him to be nominated and elected as director of the Surviving Corporation.

SECTION 6.13 EXPENSES. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, Parent, Sub and the Company shall bear their respective expenses incurred in connection with the preparation, execution and performance of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby, including, without limitation, all fees and expenses of investment bankers, agents, representatives, counsel and accountants. In any action, suit or proceeding under or to enforce any provision of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its reasonable attorney's fees and other out-of-pocket expenses from the losing

36

SECTION 6.14 FURTHER ASSURANCES. (a) Each of Parent, Sub and the Company shall execute such documents and other papers and take such further actions as may be reasonably required or desirable to carry out the provisions hereof and the transactions contemplated hereby. Each of Parent, Sub and the Company shall use all reasonable efforts to cause all actions to effectuate the Closing for which such party is responsible under this Agreement to be taken as promptly as practicable, including using all reasonable efforts to obtain all necessary waivers, consents and approvals (including, but not limited to, if applicable, filings under the H-S-R Act and with all applicable Governmental Entities) and to lift any injunction or other legal bar to the Merger (and, in each case, to proceed with the Merger as expeditiously as possible). Notwithstanding the foregoing, there shall be no action required to be taken and no action will be taken in order to consummate and make effective the transactions contemplated by this Agreement if such action, either alone or together with another action, would result in a Company Material Adverse Effect or a Parent Material Adverse Effect.

- (b) In case at any time after the Effective Time any further action is necessary or desirable to carry out the purposes of this Agreement, the proper officers and/or directors of Parent and the Surviving Corporation shall take all such necessary action.
- (c) The Company shall cure, or cause to be cured, any defects or noncompliances in its Subsidiaries' organization or qualification as identified in Section 4.7(b) of the Company Disclosure Schedule.

SECTION 6.15 HART-SCOTT-RODINO. Each of the Company and Parent (i) shall use their reasonable efforts to file, and to cause their "ultimate parent entities" to file, as soon as practicable a "Notification and Report Form For Certain Mergers and Acquisitions" under the H-S-R Act with respect to the Merger and the transactions contemplated hereby, (ii) shall take all other actions as may be necessary, desirable or convenient to obtain the required approval under the H-S-R Act and (iii) will comply at the earliest practicable date with any request for additional information received by it from the FTC or Justice pursuant to the H-S-R Act.

SECTION 6.16 SBA APPROVAL. Each of the Company and Parent (i) shall use its reasonable efforts, and shall take all actions as may be necessary, desirable or convenient, to obtain the approval of the SBA with respect to the Merger and the transactions contemplated hereby and (ii) will comply at the earliest practicable date with any request for additional information received by it from the SBA.

SECTION 6.17 UPDATING SCHEDULES. In connection with the Closing, Parent, Sub and the Company will, promptly upon becoming aware of any fact requiring supplementation or amendment of the Schedules, supplement or amend the various Schedules to this Agreement to reflect any matter which, if existing, occurring or known on the date of this Agreement, would have been required to be set forth or described in such Schedules which was or has been rendered inaccurate thereby. No such supplement or amendment to the Schedules shall have any effect for the purpose of determining satisfaction of the conditions set forth in

Articles VII, VIII and IX hereof, or the compliance by any party hereto with its covenants and agreements set forth herein.

SECTION 6.18 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS. (a) Effective at the Effective Time, the Surviving Corporation shall establish a nonqualified deferred compensation plan (the "Surviving Corporation Plan") covering employees of the Surviving Corporation who remain as employees of the Company at the Effective Time and who, as of the Effective Time, held options to purchase shares of Company Common Stock, which options were not vested as of the Effective Time (the "Unvested Options"). Under the Surviving Corporation Plan, each

A-32

37

covered employee shall have an account to which will be credited a number of shares of Parent Common Stock (including fractional shares thereof). The number of shares of Parent Common Stock credited to a covered employee's account shall be equal to (1) the product of (x) the difference between \$3.50 per share and the exercise price per share of the covered employee's Unvested Options multiplied by (y) the number of Unvested Options held by such employee, divided by (2) \$19.39. In addition, the amount of any dividends paid on shares of Parent Common Stock equal to shares of Parent Common Stock credited to a covered employee's plan account shall be credited to that account. Shares and accumulated dividends shall be paid to covered employees in accordance with the vesting schedule to be established under the Surviving Corporation Plan (which vesting schedule shall be no less favorable to the covered employee than the schedule under his or her Unvested Options) or, pursuant to the separate election of each covered employee with respect to the period after vesting, payment may be deferred until a date or event specified by such employee or allocated to a type of investment fund specified by such employee. In exchange for the credits made under the Surviving Corporation Plan, the covered employees shall surrender all rights to any Unvested Options. A copy of the Surviving Corporation Plan shall be provided to the Company prior to the Closing Date.

(b) The Company shall use all reasonable efforts to cause the holders of each Unvested Option to surrender all of the Unvested Options to the Company for cancellation prior to the Effective Time; provided, however, that the Unvested Options shall not be deemed canceled until the holders thereof have been credited shares of Parent Common Stock under the Surviving Corporation Plan in accordance with Section 6.18(a) after the Effective Time.

SECTION 6.19 COMPANY RECAPITALIZATION. The Company shall use all reasonable efforts to consummate the Company Recapitalization, subsequent to the consummation of the Futuronics Merger and immediately prior to the Effective Time, including the obtaining of the necessary consents of the Company's stockholders thereto.

# ARTICLE VII CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO EACH PARTY'S OBLIGATION TO EFFECT THE MERGER

The respective obligations of each party to effect the Merger shall be subject to the satisfaction on or prior to the Closing of the following conditions, any one or more of which may be waived by them, to the extent permitted by law:

SECTION 7.1 COMPANY STOCKHOLDER APPROVAL. This Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby shall have been approved and adopted by the requisite vote of the Company's stockholders.

SECTION 7.2 LISTING OF SHARES. The shares of Parent Common Stock issuable in the Merger shall have been approved for listing on the Nasdaq National Market.

SECTION 7.3 HART-SCOTT-RODINO. All applicable waiting periods with respect to any "Notification and Report Form For Certain Mergers and Acquisitions" required to be filed by Parent, the Company or any of their "ultimate parent entities" in compliance with the H-S-R Act in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby shall have passed, or early termination of such waiting periods shall have been granted.

A-33

38

SECTION 7.4 EFFECTIVENESS OF REGISTRATION STATEMENT. The Registration Statement shall have become effective in accordance with the provisions of the Securities Act. No stop order suspending the effectiveness of the Registration Statement shall have been issued by the SEC and remain in effect.

SECTION 7.5 SBA APPROVAL. The SBA shall have approved the Merger, this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby; provided, that if such approval is subject to any conditions, such conditions shall be reasonably acceptable to Parent and shall not prevent the continued operation of Company substantially as currently conducted.

SECTION 7.6 LITIGATION. No action, suit or proceeding shall have been instituted and be continuing or be threatened by any Governmental Entity to restrain, modify or prevent the carrying out of the transactions contemplated hereby and no temporary restraining order, preliminary or permanent injunction or other order issued by any court of competent jurisdiction or other legal or regulatory restraint or prohibition preventing the consummation of the Merger or limiting or restricting Parent's conduct or operation of the business of the Company after the Merger shall have been issued.

SECTION 7.7 FUTURONICS MERGER; COMPANY RECAPITALIZATION. The Futuronics Merger and the Company Recapitalization shall have been consummated no later than the Effective Time of the Merger.

# ARTICLE VIII CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO THE OBLIGATION OF PARENT AND SUB TO EFFECT THE MERGER

The obligation of Parent and Sub to effect the Merger shall be subject to the satisfaction on or prior to the Closing of the following additional conditions, any one or more of which may be waived by them, to the extent permitted by law:

SECTION 8.1 REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS. The representations and warranties of the Company contained in this Agreement (including those contained in the Company Disclosure Schedule, as the same may be amended from time to time pursuant to the provisions hereof) shall be true and correct on and as of the

Closing Date with the same force and effect as though made on and as of the Closing Date, (except that any such representations and warranties that are given as of a particular date and relate solely to a particular date or period shall be true and correct as of such date or period), except where the failure of such representations and warranties to be true and correct (without giving effect to any materiality or Company Material Adverse Effect limitations therein) would not have, and could not reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Company Material Adverse Effect. The Company and the Company stockholders who are parties to the Voting Agreement, shall have performed and complied, respectively, in all material respects with all covenants and agreements required by this Agreement and the Voting Agreement to be performed or complied with by the Company or such Company stockholders on or prior to the Closing Date. The Company shall have delivered to Parent and Sub certificates, dated the Closing Date, and signed by an Executive Officer of the Company to the foregoing effect.

SECTION 8.2 ABSENCE OF MATERIAL ADVERSE CHANGE. Since the date hereof, there shall not have been any change, event, occurrence or state of facts that has caused or would reasonably be expected to cause a Company Material Adverse Effect.

A - 34

39

SECTION 8.3 RECEIPT OF AGREEMENTS. On the date hereof, Parent shall have received executed originals of (i) the Voting Agreement and (ii) the Agreements with Specified Shareholders. On or prior to the Closing Date, Parent shall have received executed originals of each of the Employment Agreements.

SECTION 8.4 EXERCISE AND CONVERSION OF VESTED STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS. All vested Company Stock Options and all Company Warrants shall have been fully exercised for the purchase of Company Common Stock.

SECTION 8.5 UNVESTED OPTIONS. All Unvested Options shall have been surrendered and canceled pursuant to Section 6.18.

SECTION 8.6 CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES. Not more than \$250,000 in aggregate principal amount of Company Convertible Debentures shall be outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time.

SECTION 8.7 TAX OPINION. Parent shall have received the opinion, based on the representations of the Company, Parent and Sub, (which representations shall be in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibits 6.1(b)-1 and 6.1(b)-2 respectively), of Sutherland Asbill & Brennan LLP, counsel to Parent and Sub (or, if such counsel does not render such opinion, such other counsel as shall be reasonably acceptable to Parent) to the effect that the Merger will be treated as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code and such opinion shall not have been withdrawn or modified in any material respect. Parent may not waive this condition without the consent of the Company.

SECTION 8.8 CLOSING CONDITIONS. Documentation or other information shall have been received in a form reasonably satisfactory to Parent and Sub which evidences that the conditions set forth in this Article VIII have been satisfied.

The obligation of the Company to effect the Merger shall be subject to the satisfaction on or prior to the Closing of the following additional conditions, any one or more of which may be waived by the Company, to the extent permitted by law:

SECTION 9.1 REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS. The representations and warranties of Parent and Sub contained in this Agreement (including those contained in the Parent Disclosure Schedule, as the same may be amended from time to time pursuant to the provisions hereof) shall be true and correct on and as of the Closing Date with the same force and effect as though made on and as of the Closing Date, (except that any such representations and warranties that are given as of a particular date and relate solely to a particular date or period shall be true and correct as of such date or period), except where the failure of such representations and warranties to be true and correct (without giving effect to any materiality or Parent Material Adverse Effect limitations therein) would not have, and could not reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Parent Material Adverse Effect. Parent and Sub shall have performed and complied in all material respects with all covenants and agreements required by this Agreement to be performed or complied with by Parent or Sub on or prior to the Closing Date. Parent and Sub shall have delivered to the Company certificates of an Executive Officer of Parent and Sub, dated the Closing Date, to the foregoing effect.

A-35

40

SECTION 9.2 ABSENCE OF MATERIAL ADVERSE CHANGE. Since the date hereof, there shall not have been any change, event, occurrence or state of facts that has caused or would reasonably be expected to cause a Parent Material Adverse Effect.

SECTION 9.3 TAX OPINION. The Company shall have received the opinion of Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP, counsel to the Company (or, if such counsel does not render such opinion, such other counsel as shall be reasonably acceptable to the Company), based on the representations of the Company, Parent and Sub, (which representations shall be in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibits 6.1(b)-1 and 6.1(b)-2 respectively), to the effect that the Merger will be treated as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code and such opinion shall not have been withdrawn or modified in any material respect. The Company may not waive this condition without the consent of Parent.

SECTION 9.4 CLOSING CONDITIONS. Documentation or other information shall have been received in a form reasonably satisfactory to the Company which evidences that the conditions set forth in this Article IX have been satisfied.

## ARTICLE X CLOSING

The closing (the "Closing") of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall take place at the offices of Sutherland Asbill & Brennan LLP, 1275 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20004, at 10:00 a.m. local time on the Closing Date or at such other time and place as the parties may mutually agree.

# ARTICLE XI NON-SURVIVAL OF REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS

SECTION 11.1 NON-SURVIVAL OF REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS. Notwithstanding any right of Parent and Sub to investigate fully the affairs of the Company, or any right of the Company to investigate fully the accuracy of the representations and warranties of Parent and Sub, and notwithstanding any knowledge of facts determined or determinable by Parent, Sub or the Company, as the case may be, pursuant to such investigation or right of investigation, Parent, Sub and the Company, as the case may be, have the right to rely fully upon the representations, warranties, covenants and agreements of the Company, Parent and Sub, as the case may be, contained in this Agreement. No representations, warranties, covenants or agreements in this Agreement, except the covenants and agreements contained in Articles III, XIII and XIV and Sections 4.29, 5.8, 6.1(b), 6.5, 6.12, 6.13 and 6.18, shall survive the Effective Time.

### ARTICLE XII TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

SECTION 12.1 TERMINATION. This Agreement may be terminated prior to the Closing as follows:

(a) by either Parent or the Company if the Merger shall not have been consummated on or before April 30, 2001;

A-36

41

- (b) by the Company if any of the conditions specified in Article VII or IX have not been met or waived by the Company at such time as any such condition is no longer capable of satisfaction;
- (c) by Parent if any of the conditions specified in Article VII or VIII have not been met or waived by Parent at such time as any such condition is no longer capable of satisfaction;
- (d) by Parent if the Company or the Company stockholders who are parties to the Voting Agreement shall have breached any of their respective obligations under Article VI of this Agreement or the Voting Agreement in any material respect and such breach continues for a period of ten days after the receipt of notice of the breach from Parent;
- (e) by the Company if Parent or Sub shall have breached any of their respective obligations under Article VI of this Agreement in any material respect and such breach continues for a period of ten days after the receipt of notice of the breach from the Company;
- (f) by the Company if its Board of Directors, in the exercise of its fiduciary duties, accepts an Acquisition Proposal in accordance with Section 6.9;
- (g) at any time on or prior to the Closing Date, by mutual written consent of Parent, Sub and the Company.

SECTION 12.2 EFFECT OF TERMINATION. (a) Subject to Section 12.2(b), if this Agreement is terminated and the transactions contemplated hereby are not consummated as described above, this Agreement shall become void and be of no further force and effect and there shall be no obligation on the part of Parent, Sub or the Company, except for the provisions of this Agreement relating to the obligations of parties under Sections 6.4(b), 6.13, 12.1 and 12.2(b) and Articles XIII and XIV. None of the parties hereto shall have any liability in respect to a termination of this Agreement prior to Closing, except to the extent that termination results from the intentional, willful or knowing violation of the representations, warranties, covenants or agreements of such party under this Agreement and except as provided in Section 12.2(b) hereof.

(b) In the event that this Agreement is terminated by the Company pursuant to Section 12.1(f), then the Company shall, promptly, but in no event later than one Business Day after the date of such termination, pay to the Parent a termination fee of \$2,750,000 (the "Termination Fee") payable by wire transfer of same day funds.

## ARTICLE XIII DEFINITIONS

SECTION 13.1 DEFINITIONS. The following terms when used in this Agreement shall have the following meanings:

"Acquisition Proposal" has the meaning set forth in Section 6.9.

"affiliate" (or "affiliates" as the context may require), with respect to any person, means any other person controlling, controlled by or under common control with such person.

"Affiliates" has the meaning set forth in Section 6.7(a).

"Agreement" has the meaning set forth in the preamble.

A-37

42

"Agreements with Specified Shareholders" means agreements between Parent and each of the Named Persons pursuant to which such persons agree to certain restrictions on their ability to transfer Parent Common Stock received in the Merger for a specified period after the Effective Time.

"Business Day" means any day other than a Saturday or a Sunday, or a day on which banking institutions in the State of New York are obligated by law or executive order to close.

"Canceled Company Stock" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.1(d).

"CERCLA" shall mean the Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. (S)(S) 9601 et seq. as amended.

"Certificates" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2(a).

"Closing" has the meaning set forth in Article X.

"Closing Date" means (a) the day on which the last of all conditions to the

consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby (other than conditions which contemplate only delivery or filing of one or more documents contemporaneously with the Closing) have been satisfied or waived, or (b) such other date as the parties hereto agree in writing.

"Code" has the meaning set forth in the recitals.

"Company" has the meaning set forth in the preamble.

"Company Audited Financial Statements" has the meaning provided in Section 4.10.

"Company Class B Stock" means Class B common stock, par value \$0.01 per share, of the Company created pursuant to the Company Recapitalization and having powers and rights identical to the Company Common Stock and voting together with the Company Common Stock as a single class.

"Company Common Stock" means, the common stock of the Company, having a par value of \$.01 (one cent) per share.

"Company Convertible Debentures" means the Company's 9% Convertible Subordinated Notes Due 2003, Conversion Price \$2.75 Per Share and the Company's 9 1/4% Convertible Subordinated Notes Due 2001, Conversion Price \$2.00 Per Share.

"Company Disclosure Schedule" has the meaning set forth in the preamble to Article IV.

"Company Documents" has the meaning set forth in Section 4.1.

"Company Financial Statements" has the meaning set forth in Section 4.10.

"Company Interim Financial Statements" has the meaning set forth in Section 4.10.

"Company Material Adverse Effect" has the meaning set forth in Section 4.3.

"Company Meeting" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.6.

"Company Recapitalization" means a recapitalization of the Company immediately prior to the Effective Time, pursuant to which (A) the Company Class B Stock will be created, (B) each share of Company Common Stock held by Futuronics will be exchanged for one share of Company Class B Stock, and (C) a number of shares of Company Common Stock (the "Executive Shares") equal to 5.1 percent of the total number of shares of Company

A-38

43

Common Stock outstanding immediately prior to the Company Recapitalization shall be exchanged with certain individuals for a corresponding number of shares of Company Class B Stock as follows: (i) a number of shares of Company Common Stock held by Robert F. Tannenhauser equal to 72.2 percent of the Executive Shares will be exchanged for a corresponding number of shares of Company Class B Stock, (ii) a number of shares of Company Common Stock held by Peter D. Blanck equal to 10.3 percent of the Executive Shares will be exchanged for a corresponding

number of shares of Company Class B Stock, (iii) a number of shares of Company Common Stock held by Richard Blanck equal to 10.3 percent of the Executive Shares will be exchanged for a corresponding number of shares of Company Class B Stock and (iv) a number of shares of Company Common Stock held by Jennifer M.Goldstein equal to 7.2 percent of the Executive Shares will be exchanged for a corresponding number of shares of Company Class B Stock.

"Company SEC Documents" has the meaning set forth in Section 4.10.

"Company Stock Option" means any option for the purchase of Company Common Stock.

"Company Warrant" means any warrant for the purchase of Company Common Stock.

"Confidentiality Agreement" means the Mutual Nondisclosure Agreement dated as of August 3, 2000, between Parent and the Company.

"Confirmation" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.1(e).

"contracts and other agreements" mean all contracts, agreements, supply agreements, undertakings, indentures, notes, bonds, loans, instruments, leases, mortgages, commitments or other binding arrangements.

"Converting Shareholder" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2(a).

"Delaware Corporation Law" has the meaning set forth in Section 1.1.

"Distribution" means any distribution of cash, securities or property on or in respect of the Company Common Stock whether as a dividend or otherwise.

"Effective Time" has the meaning set forth in Section 1.2.

"Employment Agreements" means employment agreements, satisfactory in form and substance to Parent, between the Surviving Corporation, on the one hand, and Robert F. Tannenhauser and Jennifer M. Goldstein, respectively, on the other, to become effective at the Effective Time.

"Environmental Laws" means all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, codes, duties under the common law or orders, including, without limitation, any requirements imposed under any Permits, licenses, judgments, decrees, agreements or recorded covenants, conditions, restrictions or easements, the purpose of which is to protect the environment.

"Environmental Permits" shall mean all Permits, licenses, approvals, authorizations, consents or registrations required under applicable Environmental Laws in connection with the ownership, use and/or operation by the Company or its Subsidiaries of their properties.

"ERISA" means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended.

"Exchange Act" means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the regulations and rulings issued thereunder.

- "Exchange Agent" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2(a).
- "Exchange Ratio" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.1(a)(1).
- "Executive Officers" means, as to Parent and the Company, respectively, its chairman of the board, its president, any vice president (executive, senior or other), secretary, treasurer or chief financial officer, if any, or any other officer or employee having supervisory responsibility for a principal business function.
- "Family Member" means, with respect to any person, a parent, spouse, sibling or lineal descendent of such person.
- "FTC" means the Federal Trade Commission or any successor agency or department.
  - "Futuronics" means Futuronics Corporation, a New York corporation.
- "Futuronics Acquisition Co." means Allied Capital F Sub Corporation, a New York corporation and a wholly owned subsidiary of Parent.
- "Futuronics Merger" means the merger of Futuronics Acquisition Co. with and into Futuronics upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Futuronics Merger Agreement.
- "Futuronics Merger Agreement" means the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of even date herewith, by and among Parent, Futuronics Acquisition Co. and Futuronics.
- "GAAP" means generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America from time to time in effect.
- "Governmental Entities" means (a) any international, foreign, federal, state, county, local or municipal government or administrative agency or political subdivision thereof, (b) any governmental agency, authority, board, bureau, commission, department or instrumentality, (c) any court or administrative tribunal, (d) any non-governmental agency, tribunal or entity that is vested by a governmental agency with applicable jurisdiction, or (e) any arbitration tribunal or other non-governmental authority with applicable jurisdiction.
- "Hazardous Materials" means (i) any substance or material regulated or identified as hazardous, toxic, pollutant or contaminant under Environmental Laws, including gasoline, diesel fuel or other petroleum hydrocarbons, PCBs or asbestos; or (ii) any pollutant, toxic substance, or contaminant.
- "H-S-R Act" means the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.
  - "Insurance Policies" has the meaning set forth in Section 4.25.
- "Intellectual Property Rights" has the meaning set forth in Section 4.19(a).
  - "IRS" means the Internal Revenue Service or any successor agency or

department.

"Knowledge of Company" or "of which Company is aware" or words of similar import shall be deemed to mean the actual knowledge of the following individuals: Robert F. Tannenhauser, Jennifer M. Goldstein, Leonard Rudolph, David I. Redlener and Louis M. Hafkin.

A - 40

45

"Knowledge of Parent" or "of which Parent is aware" or words of similar import shall be deemed to mean the actual knowledge of the following individuals: William L. Walton, Joan M. Sweeney, and Penni F. Roll.

"Justice" means the Antitrust Division of the Department of Justice or any successor agency or department.

"Leased Real Property" has the meaning set forth in Section 4.18(a).

"Leases" has the meaning set forth in Section 4.18(a).

"Liabilities" has the meaning set forth in Section 4.11.

"lien or other encumbrance" (or "liens or other encumbrances" or "liens or other encumbrance" or "lien or other encumbrances" as the context may require or any similar formulation) means any lien, claim, pledge, mortgage, assessment, security interest, charge, option, right of first refusal, easement, servitude, adverse claim, transfer restriction under any stockholder or similar agreement or other encumbrance of any kind.

"Merger" has the meaning set forth in the recitals.

"Named Persons" means each of Robert F. Tannenhauser, Carol Tannenhauser, David Tannenhauser, Emily Tannenhauser, Peter D. Blanck, Richard Blanck, Jennifer M. Goldstein, Diane Rosenfeld, R. Matthew McGee and Futuronics.

"1940 Act" shall mean the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, and the regulations and rulings issued thereunder.

"Notice of Superior Proposal" has the meaning set forth in Section 6.9(b).

"Owned Real Property" has the meaning set forth in Section 4.18

"Parent" has the meaning set forth in the preamble.

"Parent Common Stock" means the common stock, par value \$0.0001 per share, of Parent.

"Parent Disclosure Schedule" has the meaning set forth in the preamble to  ${\tt Article}\ {\tt V.}$ 

"Parent Documents" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.1.

"Parent Financial Statements" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.4.

"Parent Interim Financial Statements" has the meaning set forth in Section

- "Parent Material Adverse Effect" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.2.
- "Parent SEC Documents" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.4.
- "Permits" (or "Permit" as the context may require) mean all licenses, permits, certificates, certificates of occupancy, orders, approvals, registrations, authorizations and qualifications with and under all federal, state, or local or laws.
- "person" (or "persons" as the context may require) means any individual, corporation, limited liability company, partnership, firm, joint venture, association, joint-stock company, trust, unincorporated organization, Governmental Entity or other entity.
  - "Plan" or "Plans" has the meaning set forth in Section 4.23(a).

A - 41

46

- "Proceeding" has the meaning set forth in Section 4.15.
- "property" (or "properties" as the context may require) means real, personal or mixed property, tangible or intangible.
  - "Proxy Statement" has the meaning set forth in Section 4.9.
  - "Receiving Party" has the meaning set forth in Section 14.1.
  - "Registration Statement" has the meaning set forth in Section 4.9.
  - "Releasing Party" has the meaning set forth in Section 14.1.
  - "SBA" has the meaning set forth in Section 4.2.
- "SEC" means the Securities and Exchange Commission or any successor agency or department.
- "Securities Act" means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the regulations and rulings issued thereunder.
  - "Share Consideration" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2(a).
  - "Sub" has the meaning set forth in the preamble hereof.
- "Sub Common Stock" means the common stock, par value \$0.01 per share, of Sub.
- "Subsidiaries" (or "Subsidiary" as the context may require), means each entity as to which a person, directly or indirectly, owns or has the power to vote, or to exercise a controlling influence with respect to, 50% or more of the securities of any class of such entity, the holders of which are ordinarily, in the absence of contingencies, entitled to vote for the election of directors (or persons performing similar functions) of such entity, provided that, with respect to Parent, the term "Subsidiary" or "Subsidiaries" shall not include any

person that is not required to be consolidated on consolidated financial statements of Parent prepared in accordance with GAAP.

- "Superior Proposal" has the meaning set forth in Section 6.9.
- "Surviving Corporation" has the meaning set forth in Section 1.1.
- "Surviving Corporation Plan" has the meaning set forth in Section 6.18.

"Taxes" (or "Tax" as the context may require) means all federal, state, county, local, foreign and other taxes (including, without limitation, income, intangibles, premium, excise, sales, use, gross receipts, franchise, ad valorem, severance, capital levy, transfer, employment and payroll-related, and property taxes, import duties and other governmental charges and assessments), and includes interest, additions to tax and penalties with respect thereto.

"Tax Returns" means any return or report relating to Taxes.

- "Termination Fee" has the meaning set forth in Section 12.2.
- "Voting Agreement" has the meaning set forth in the preamble.
- "Unvested Options" has the meaning set forth in Section 6.18.

A - 42

47

## ARTICLE XIV MISCELLANEOUS

SECTION 14.1 PUBLICITY. So long as this Agreement is in effect, prior to making a press release or other public statement with respect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, any party (a "Releasing Party") will consult with the other party (the "Receiving Party") and provide such other party with a draft of such press release, except as may otherwise be required by law or stock exchange regulations.

SECTION 14.2 PARENT GUARANTY. Parent hereby unconditionally and irrevocably guarantees the full and timely payment and performance by Sub of its obligations hereunder.

SECTION 14.3 NOTICES. Any notice or other communication required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and shall be delivered personally, sent by facsimile transmission or sent by certified, registered, express mail or nationally recognized courier service, postage prepaid. Any such notice shall deemed given when so delivered personally or successfully sent by facsimile transmission or, if mailed, five days after the date of deposit in the United States mails, as follows:

(i) if to Parent or Sub to:

Allied Capital Corporation 1919 Pennsylvania Avenue, 3rd Floor Washington, D.C. 20006 Attention: Joan M. Sweeney Telecopy No.: (202) 973-6351 with a concurrent copy to: Sutherland Asbill & Brennan LLP 1275 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W. Washington, D.C. 20004 Attention: James D. Darrow Telecopy No.: (202) 637-3593

### (ii) if to the Company to:

BLC Financial Services, Inc. 645 Madison Avenue, 19th Floor New York, New York 10022 Attention: Robert Tannenhauser Telecopy No.: (212) 888-3949 with a copy to:
Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP 767 Fifth Avenue
New York, New York 10153 Attention: Simeon Gold Telecopy No.: (212) 310-8007

Any party may by notice given in accordance with this Section 14.3 to the other parties designate another address or person for receipt of notices hereunder.

SECTION 14.4 ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement (including the exhibits and schedules hereto) and the agreements contemplated hereby, including but not limited to the Confidenti-

A - 43

48

ality Agreement, contain the entire agreement among the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersede all prior agreements, written or oral, with respect thereto.

SECTION 14.5 WAIVERS AND AMENDMENTS; NON CONTRACTUAL REMEDIES; PRESERVATION OF REMEDIES; LIABILITY. This Agreement may be amended, superseded, canceled, renewed or extended, and the terms hereof may be waived, only by a written instrument signed by each of the parties or, in the case of waiver, by the party waiving compliance. No delay on the part of any party in exercising any right, power or privilege hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any waiver on the part of any party of any such right, power or privilege, nor any single or partial exercise of any such right, power or privilege, preclude any further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power or privilege. The rights and remedies herein provided are cumulative and, except as provided in Section 12.2, are not exclusive of any rights or remedies that any party may otherwise have at law or in equity. The rights and remedies of any party based upon, arising out of or otherwise in respect of any inaccuracy in or breach of any representation, warranty, covenant or agreement contained in this Agreement shall in no way be limited by the fact that the act, omission, occurrence or other state of facts upon which any claim of any such inaccuracy or breach is based may also be the subject matter of any other representation, warranty, covenant or agreement contained in this Agreement (or in any other agreement between the parties) as to which there is no inaccuracy or breach. The limitations on claims set forth in this Section 14.5 and elsewhere in this

Agreement shall not apply in the case of fraud on the part of the Company.

SECTION 14.6 GOVERNING LAW. THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK WITHOUT REGARD TO PRINCIPLES OF CONFLICTS OF LAWS.

SECTION 14.7 BINDING EFFECT; NO ASSIGNMENT. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors and assigns and heirs and legal representatives. Neither this Agreement, nor any right hereunder, may be assigned by any party without the prior written consent of the other party hereto; provided, however, that Parent may assign its rights (but not its obligations) hereto to its Subsidiaries.

SECTION 14.8 THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. Except for Section 6.1(b) and 6.5, nothing in this Agreement is intended or shall be construed to give any person, other than the parties hereto, any legal or equitable right, remedy or claim under or in respect of this Agreement or any provision contained herein.

Without limiting the foregoing, no direct or indirect holder of any equity interests or securities of any party hereto (whether such holder is a limited or general partner, member, stockholder or otherwise), nor any affiliate of any party hereto, nor any director, officer, employee, representative, agent or other controlling person of each of the parties hereto and their respective affiliates, shall have any liability or obligation arising under this Agreement or the transaction contemplated hereby, except as may be provided in a separate written agreement signed by such Person.

SECTION 14.9 COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed by the parties hereto in separate counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered shall be an original, but all such counterparts shall together constitute one and the same instrument. Each counterpart may consist of a number of copies hereof each signed by less than all, but together signed by all of the parties hereto.

SECTION 14.10 EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES. The exhibits and schedules hereto are a part of this Agreement as if fully set forth herein. All references herein to Articles, Sections,

A - 44

49

subsections, clauses, exhibits and schedules shall be deemed references to such parts of this Agreement, unless the context shall otherwise require.

SECTION 14.11 HEADINGS. The headings in this Agreement are for reference only, and shall not affect the interpretation of this Agreement.

SECTION 14.12 SUBMISSION TO JURISDICTION; VENUE. Any action or proceeding against any party hereto with respect to this Agreement shall be brought in the courts of the State of New York or of the United States located in the State of New York, and, by execution and delivery of this Agreement, each party hereto hereby irrevocably accepts for itself and in respect of its property, generally and unconditionally, the jurisdiction of the aforesaid courts. Each party hereto irrevocably consents to the service of process at any of the aforementioned courts in any such action or proceeding by the mailing of copies thereof by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, to such party at its address set

forth in Section 14.3, such service to become effective 30 days after such mailing. Nothing herein shall affect the right of any party hereto to serve process on any other party hereto in any other manner permitted by law. Each party hereto irrevocably waives any objection which it may now have or hereafter have to the laying of venue of any of the aforesaid actions or proceedings arising out of or in connection with this Agreement brought in the courts referred to above and hereby further irrevocably waives and agrees not to plead or claim in any such court that any such action or proceeding brought in any such court has been brought in an inconvenient forum.

SECTION 14.13 SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE. The parties hereto agree that irreparable damage would occur in the event that any of the provisions of this Agreement were not performed in accordance with their specific terms or were otherwise breached. It is accordingly agreed that the parties shall be entitled to an injunction or injunctions to prevent breaches of this Agreement and to enforce specifically the terms and provisions hereof in any court of the United States or any state having jurisdiction, this being in addition to any other remedy to which they are entitled at law or in equity.

SECTION 14.14 SEVERABILITY. If any court of competent jurisdiction determines that any provision of this Agreement is not enforceable in accordance with its terms, then such provision shall be deemed to be modified so as to apply such provision, as modified, to the protection of the legitimate interests of the parties hereto to the fullest extent legally permissible and shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining provisions of this Agreement.

A - 45

50

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the date first above written.

ALLIED CAPITAL CORPORATION

By: /s/ JOAN SWEENEY

-----

Title: Managing Director and Chief Operating

Officer

Name: Joan Sweeney

ALLIED CAPITAL B SUB CORPORATION

By: /s/ JOAN SWEENEY

-----

Title: Managing Director

Name: Joan Sweeney

BLC FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.

By: /s/ ROBERT TANNENHAUSER

-----

Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

Name: Robert Tannenhauser

#### VOTING AND SUPPORT AGREEMENT

AGREEMENT, dated October 31, 2000 (this "Agreement"), by and among Allied Capital Corporation, a Maryland corporation ("Acquiror"), Robert Tannenhauser, Carol Tannenhauser, David Tannenhauser, Emily Tannenhauser, Peter Blanck, Richard Blanck, Jennifer Goldstein, Dianne Rosenfeld, R. Matthew McGee and Futuronics Corporation, a New York corporation (collectively the "Shareholders").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, concurrently herewith, Acquiror and BLC Financial Services, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Company"), are entering into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (as such agreement may hereafter be amended from time to time, the "Merger Agreement"; capitalized terms used and not defined herein have the respective meanings ascribed to them in the Merger Agreement) pursuant to which a subsidiary of Acquiror will be merged with and into the Company (the "Merger");

WHEREAS, the Shareholders collectively own of record or are Beneficial Owners of shares (the "Shares"), par value \$0.01 per share, of common stock of the Company ("Common Stock"); and

WHEREAS, as an inducement and a condition to entering into the Merger Agreement, Acquiror has required that the Shareholders agree, and the Shareholders have agreed, to enter into this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual premises, representations, warranties, covenants and agreements contained herein, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:

2

1. Provisions Concerning Shares. (a) Each Shareholder hereby agrees that during the period commencing on the date hereof and continuing until this provision terminates pursuant to Section 5 hereof, at any meeting of the holders of shares of Common Stock, however called, or in connection with any written consent of the holders of shares of Common Stock, such Shareholder shall vote (or cause to be voted) the Shares held of record or Beneficially Owned (as defined below) by such Shareholder, whether heretofore owned or hereafter acquired, (i) in favor of the adoption of the Merger Agreement and any actions required in furtherance thereof and hereof; (ii) against any action or agreement

that would result in a breach in any respect of any covenant, representation or warranty or any other obligation or agreement of the Company under the Merger Agreement (after giving effect to any materiality or similar qualifications contained therein); and (iii) except as otherwise agreed to in writing in advance by Acquiror, against the following actions (other than the Merger and the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement): (A) any extraordinary corporate transaction, such as a merger, consolidation or other business combination involving the Company; (B) a sale, lease or transfer of a material amount of assets of the Company, or a reorganization, recapitalization, dissolution or liquidation of the Company; (C) (1) any change in a majority of the persons who constitute the board of directors of the Company; (2) any change in the present capitalization of the Company or any amendment of the Company's Articles of Incorporation or By-Laws; (3) any other material change in the Company's corporate structure or business. None of the Shareholders shall enter into any agreement or understanding with any person the effect of which would be inconsistent or violative of the provisions and agreements contained in Section 1 or 2 hereof. For purposes of this Agreement, "Beneficially Own" or "Beneficial Ownership" with respect to any securities shall mean having "beneficial ownership" of such securities (as determined pursuant to Rule 13d-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act")), including pursuant to any agreement, arrangement or understanding, whether or not in writing. Without duplicative counting of the same securities by the same holder, securities Beneficially Owned by a person shall include securities Beneficially Owned by all other persons with whom such person would constitute a "group" as within the meanings of Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act.

- (b) In furtherance of the foregoing each Shareholder hereby agrees to vote in accordance with the provisions of the preceding paragraph.
- 2. Other Covenants, Representations and Warranties. Each Shareholder hereby agrees, severally and not jointly, represents and warrants as to itself to Acquiror as follows:
- (a) Ownership of Shares. Each Shareholder is the Beneficial Owner of the number of shares set forth opposite such Shareholder's name on Schedule I hereton. On the date hereof, such Shares constitute all of the shares of Common Stock owned of record or Beneficially Owned by such Shareholder. Such Shareholder has with respect to the Shares Beneficially Owned by such Shareholder sole voting power and sole power to issue instructions with respect to the matters set forth in Section 1 hereof, sole power of disposition, sole power of conversion, sole power to demand appraisal rights and, subject to the receipt of any required

2

3

governmental approvals sole power to agree to all of the matters set forth in this Agreement, in each case with respect to all such Shares Beneficially Owned

by such Shareholder, with no limitations, qualifications or restrictions on such rights.

- (b) Power; Binding Agreement. Such Shareholder has all necessary power, authority or competence (if a natural person) to execute, deliver and perform this Agreement. The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by such Shareholder will not violate any other agreement to which such Shareholder is a party including, without limitation, any voting agreement, shareholders agreement or voting trust. The execution and delivery of this Agreement by such Shareholder, the performance by such Shareholder of its obligations hereunder and the consummation by such Shareholder of the transactions contemplated hereby have been duly authorized in the case of such Shareholder who is not natural a person by all requisite action on the part of such Shareholder, and no other corporate or other proceedings on the part of such Shareholder are necessary to approve this Agreement and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby. This Agreement has been duly and validly executed and delivered by such Shareholder, enforceable against such Shareholder in accordance with its terms.
- (c) No Conflicts. (A) No filing with, and no permit, authorization, consent or approval of, any state or federal public body or authority is necessary for the execution of this Agreement by such Shareholder and, the consummation by such Shareholder of the transactions contemplated hereby and (B) none of the execution and delivery of this Agreement by such Shareholder, the consummation by such Shareholder of the transactions contemplated hereby or compliance by such Shareholder with any of the provisions hereof shall (1) result in a violation or breach of, or constitute (with or without notice or lapse of time or both) a default (or give rise to any third party right of termination, cancellation, material modification or acceleration) under any of the terms, conditions or provisions of any note, bond, mortgage, indenture, license, contract, commitment, arrangement, understanding, agreement or other instrument or obligation of any kind to which such Shareholder is a party or by which such Shareholder or any of such Shareholder's properties or assets may be bound, or (2) violation any order, writ, injunction, decree, judgment, order, statute, rule or regulation applicable to such Shareholder or any of such Shareholder's properties or assets.
- (d) No Solicitation. From and after the date hereof and continuing until this provision terminates pursuant to Section 5 hereof and except as permitted by the Merger Agreement, such Shareholder shall immediately cease any existing discussions or negotiations with any third parties conducted prior to the date hereof with respect to any Acquisition Proposal. Such Shareholder shall not, directly or indirectly, through any officer, director, employee, representative or agent or any of the Company's Subsidiaries, (i) solicit or initiate any Acquisition Proposal, (ii) engage in negotiations or discussions concerning or provide any nonpublic information to any person or entity relating to, any Acquisition Proposal or (iii) agree to or approve any Acquisition Proposal.

- (e) Restriction on Transfer, Proxies and Non-Interference. Such Shareholder shall not, directly or indirectly, during the period commencing on the date hereof and continuing until this provision terminates pursuant to Section 5 hereof: (i) except (A) as contemplated by the Merger Agreement, (B) as a result of the operation of law or (C) as in connection with the exercise of any Company Options, offer for sale, sell, transfer, tender, pledge, encumber, assign or otherwise dispose of, or enter into any contract, option or other arrangement or understanding with respect to or consent to the offer for sale, sale, transfer, tender, pledge, encumbrance, assignment or other disposition of, any or all of their Shares or any interest therein; (ii) except as contemplated by this Agreement, grant any proxies or powers of attorney, deposit any Shares Beneficially Owned by such Shareholder into a voting trust or enter into a voting agreement with respect to any Shares; or (iii) take any action that would make any of its representations or warranties contained herein untrue or incorrect or have the effect of preventing or disabling any of them from performing his or her obligations under this Agreement.
- (f) Reliance by Acquiror. Such Shareholder understands and acknowledges that Acquiror is entering into the Merger Agreement in reliance upon such Shareholder's execution and delivery of this Agreement.
- 3. Further Assurances. From time to time, at the other party's request and without further consideration, each Shareholder, on the one hand, and Acquiror, on the other hand, shall execute and deliver such additional documents and take all such further lawful action as may be necessary or desirable in Acquiror's reasonable judgment to consummate and make effective, in the most expeditious manner practicable, the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Merger Agreement.
- 4. Stop Transfer. Each Shareholder agrees with, and covenants to, Acquiror that such Shareholder shall not request that the Company register the transfer (book-entry or otherwise) of any certificate or uncertificated interest representing the Shares, unless such transfer is made in compliance with this Agreement. In the event of a stock dividend or distribution, or any change in the Company Common Stock by reason of any stock dividend, split-up, recapitalization, combination, exchange of shares or the like, the term "Shares" shall be deemed to refer to and include the Shares as well as all such stock dividends and distributions and any shares into which or for which any or all of the Shares may be changed or exchanged.
- 5. Termination. Except as otherwise provided herein, the covenants and agreements contained in Sections 1 through 4 hereof with respect to the Shares shall terminate (a) in the event the Merger Agreement is terminated in accordance with the terms of Article 12 thereof, upon such termination, and (b) in the event the Merger is consummated, at the Effective Time.

5

6. Reorganization. Each shareholder and the Acquiror understands that the Merger is intended to qualify as a reorganization within the meaning of section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and agrees that it will not take any action or omit to take any action including taking any position on any tax return, inconsistent with such qualification or that would disqualify the Merger as a reorganization.

### 7. Miscellaneous.

- (a) Entire Agreement. This Agreement and constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all other prior agreements and understandings, both written and oral, between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof.
- (b) Assignment. Except for any assignment pursuant to a transfer permitted by Section 2(e)(i), this Agreement shall not be assigned by operation of law or otherwise without the prior written consent of the other party. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors.
- (c) Amendments, Waivers, Etc. This Agreement may not be amended, changed, supplemented, waived or otherwise modified or terminated, except upon the execution and delivery of a written agreement executed by the relevant parties hereto.
- (d) Notices. All notices, requests, claims, demands and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given when delivered by hand, or when sent by facsimile transmission (with receipt confirmed by an electronically generated written confirmation), addressed as follows (or to such other address as a party may designate by notice to the others):

If to the Shareholders: To the addresses set forth on the Signature Pages hereto

with a concurrent copy to:

Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP 767 Fifth Avenue New York, New York 10153 Attention: Simeon Gold Telecopy No.: (212) 310-8007

If to Acquiror: Allied Capital Corporation

5

6

Attention: Joan M. Sweeney Telecopy No.: (202) 973-6351

with a concurrent copy to:

Sutherland Asbill & Brennan LLP 1275 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W. Washington, D.C. 20004 Attention: James D. Darrow Telecopy No.: (202) 637-3593

- (e) Severability. Whenever possible, each provision or portion of any provision of this Agreement will be interpreted in such manner as to be effective and valid under applicable law but if any provision or portion of any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect under any applicable law or rule in any jurisdiction, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability will not affect any other provision or portion of any provision in such jurisdiction, and this Agreement will be reformed, construed and enforced in such jurisdiction as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision or portion of any provision had never been contained herein.
- (f) Specific Performance. Each of the parties hereto recognizes and acknowledges that a breach by it of any covenants or agreements contained in this Agreement will cause the other party to sustain damages for which it would not have an adequate remedy at law for money damages, and therefore each of the parties hereto agrees that in the event of any such breach the aggrieved party shall be entitled to the remedy of specific performance of such covenants and agreements and injunctive and other equitable relief in addition to any other remedy to which it may be entitled, at law or in equity.
- (g) Remedies Cumulative. All rights, powers and remedies provided under this Agreement or otherwise available in respect hereof at law or in equity shall be cumulative and not alternative, and the exercise of any thereof by any party shall not preclude the simultaneous or later exercise of any other such right, power or remedy by such party.
- (h) No Waiver. The failure of any party hereto to exercise any right, power or remedy provided under this Agreement or otherwise available in respect hereof at law or in equity, or to insist upon compliance by any other party hereto with its obligations hereunder, and any custom or practice of the parties at variance with the terms hereof, shall not constitute a waiver by such

party of its right to exercise any such or other right, power or remedy or to demand such compliance.

(i) No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is not intended to be for the benefit of, and shall not be enforceable by, any person or entity who or which is not a party

6

7

hereto. Without limiting the foregoing, no direct or indirect holder of any equity interests or securities of any party hereto (whether such holder is a limited or general partner, member, stockholder or otherwise), nor any affiliate of any party thereto, nor any director, officer, employee, representative, agent or other controlling person of each of the parties hereto and their respective affiliates, shall have any liability or obligation arising under this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby.

- (j) Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York, without giving effect to the principles of conflicts of law thereof.
- (k) WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. EACH PARTY HERETO HEREBY WAIVES ANY RIGHT TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN CONNECTION WITH ANY SUCH ACTION, SUIT OR PROCEEDING.
- (1) Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which, taken together, shall constitute one and the same Agreement.

7

8

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Acquiror and the Shareholders have caused this Agreement to be duly executed as of the day and year first above written.

ALLIED CAPITAL CORPORATION

By: /s/ Joan Sweeney

\_\_\_\_\_

Name: Joan Sweeney

Title: Managing Director and Chief

Operating Officer

9

Jennifer Goldstein 50 West 72nd Street New York, NY 10023

/s/ Dianne Rosenfeld

\_\_\_\_\_

Dianne Rosenfeld RR #1, Box 427 Amenia, NY 12501

/s/ R. Matthew McGee

\_\_\_\_\_

R. Matthew McGee 101 Thomashire Court Richmond, VA 23229

FUTRONICS CORPORATION 3652 Forest Gate Drive Iowa City, Iowa 52240

By: /s/ Peter Blanck

\_\_\_\_\_

Name: Peter Blanck
Title: Director

### [ALLIED CAPITAL LOGO]

ALLIED CAPITAL TO ACQUIRE BLC FINANCIAL SERVICES IN STOCK TRANSACTION

New Portfolio Company Positioned to Become Technology Leader in Small Business Lending

WASHINGTON, DC - NOVEMBER 1, 2000 -- Allied Capital Corporation (Nasdaq: ALLC) today announced that it plans to acquire BLC Financial Services Inc. (Amex: BCL) in a stock for stock exchange. The transaction will create a private portfolio company controlled by Allied Capital. Allied Capital also plans to merge its Allied Capital Express operations into the new portfolio company.

BLC Financial Services is a non-bank small business lender licensed as a participant in the SBA 7(a) Guaranteed Loan Program. BLC, headquartered in New York City, has 15 offices throughout the country and is a preferred lender in 63 SBA markets. BLC's fiscal year 2000 loan originations, including loans originated for others, approximated \$190 million.

The combination of BLC with Allied Capital Express will result in a leading small business lender with 22 offices located nationwide, 64 Preferred Lender markets, and projected annual loan origination volume of over \$450 million. Robert F. Tannenhauser, Chairman and CEO of BLC, will be appointed CEO and President of the new portfolio company.

The new portfolio company, which has not yet been named, will be a technology leader in online small business loan origination. As was recently announced, Allied Capital Express has developed proprietary online rules-based underwriting technology that will be used to streamline the portfolio company's operations. The portfolio company will have significant online loan origination relationships as well as solid core broker relationships in the small business community.

Bill Walton, Chairman and CEO of Allied Capital, remarked, "We believe market conditions in the small business lending sector have presented an excellent investment opportunity for Allied Capital. Bank consolidation and consolidation in the commercial finance industry has left a gap in serving the small business market, and our new portfolio company will be positioned with the capital, management and technology to capture this opportunity. We began building the expansion and technology platform for Allied Capital Express in the first quarter of 1999 and the BLC buyout accelerates our business plan by several years."

Robert Tannenhauser said, "This transaction is positive for BLC shareholders. Allied Capital Corporation is a much larger public company with a liquid stock

that has a strong regular quarterly dividend. By approving this transaction, BLC shareholders will increase their liquidity as well as benefit from the diversity of a large investment company. By combining the exceptional talent of our complementary companies, with the strength of automated rules-based underwriting, the new portfolio company is positioned to be a leading player in the small business loan market."

To effect the transaction, Allied Capital will issue approximately 4.2 million shares of common stock, and BLC shareholders will receive a fixed exchange ratio of 0.18

1 of 3

2

#### [ALLIED CAPITAL LOGO]

shares of Allied Capital common stock for each share of BLC stock in a tax-free exchange. In addition, in a separate transaction, Allied Capital intends to acquire a corporate shareholder of BLC for approximately \$9.1 million in cash.

Allied Capital will own approximately 95% of the portfolio company upon completion of the transaction. Management will retain 5% ownership. Allied Capital's investment is structured to provide a current return through interest, dividends and fee income, and the investment will include debt, preferred stock and common stock.

In addition, Allied Capital believes there is opportunity to significantly increase the value of the new portfolio company. Necessary approvals to complete the transaction include an affirmative vote of BLC shareholders, as well as regulatory approval by the SBA. The transaction is expected to close by December 31, 2000.

### INVESTOR WEB CAST/ CONFERENCE CALL

Allied Capital will host a web cast/ conference call at 10:00 a.m. (EST) Thursday, November 2, 2000 to discuss the proposed transaction. All interested parties are welcome to attend the live web cast, which will be hosted through our web site at www.alliedcapital.com. Please visit the web site to test your connection before the call. An archived replay of the event will be available on our web site.

You can also access the conference call by dialing (888) 748-9804 approximately 15 minutes prior to the call; please reference the passcode "Allied Capital." International callers should dial (712) 271-3410. Investors may also listen to a replay of the call by dialing (888) 568-0393. International callers can access the replay by dialing (402) 530-7932.

If you have questions about the web cast/ conference call, please visit our web

site or call Allied Capital Investor Relations at (888) 818-5298

#### ABOUT ALLIED CAPITAL

Allied Capital is the country's largest business development company, and provides long-term investment capital to support the expansion of growing companies nationwide. The company is headquartered in Washington, DC. Allied Capital Express (www.alliedcapitalexpress.com) provides small business loans nationwide as the oldest non-bank participant in the SBA 7(a) guaranteed loan program. Allied Capital Express recently launched its proprietary online rules-based loan application, which has positioned the company as a technology leader in small business finance. Allied Capital Express has eight regional offices throughout the United States, and is an SBA Preferred Lender in 27 markets. Allied Capital is quoted on the Nasdaq Stock Market and trades under the symbol "ALLC."

#### ABOUT BLC FINANCIAL SERVICES

BLC Financial Services is a non-bank small business lender (www.sbaloans.com) and an active participant in the SBA 7(a) Guaranteed Loan Program and USDA Business & Industry Loan Program. BLC has 15 offices through the United States and is an SBA Preferred Lender in 63 markets. BLC is listed on the American Stock Exchange and trades under the symbol "BCL."

2 of 3